_h_
HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Monday, 13 May 2019 6.30 p.m.
Civic Suite - Town Hall, Runcorn

R D wn (< ZJ

Chief Executive

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Paul Nolan (Chair)
Councillor Keith Morley (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Chris Carlin

Councillor Ron Hignett

Councillor Valerie Hill

Councillor Joan Lowe

Councillor Carol Plumpton Walsh

Councillor June Roberts

Councillor Dave Thompson
Councillor Bill Woolfall

Councillor Geoff Zygadllo

Please contact Ann Jones on 0151 511 8276 Ext. 16 8276 or
ann.jones@halton.gov.uk for further information.
The next meeting of the Committee is on Monday, 3 June 2019



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
Item No. Page No.
1. MINUTES 1-4
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Disclosable Interest
which they have in any item of business on the agenda, no later
than when that item is reached or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent and, with Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, to

leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item.

3. PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE 5-75
COMMITTEE

4. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 76 -77

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

At a meeting of the Development Control Committee on Monday, 8 April 2019 in the
Boardroom - Municipal Building, Widnes

DEV36

DEV37

DEV38

Present: Councillors Nolan (Chair), Morley (Vice-Chair), Carlin, R. Hignett,
V. Hill, J. Lowe, June Roberts, Thompson, Woolfall and Zygadllo

Apologies for Absence: Councillor C. Plumpton Walsh
Absence declared on Council business: None
Officers present: A. Jones, J. Tully, A. Plant and G. Henry

Also in attendance: Councillors Howard and E. Cargill and 4 members of the
public

ITEMS DEALT WITH
UNDER DUTIES
EXERCISABLE BY THE COMMITTEE

Action
MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 5 March 2019,
having been circulated, were taken as read and signed as a
correct record.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
COMMITTEE

The Committee considered the following application
for planning permission and, in accordance with its powers
and duties, made the decision described below.

17/00497/FUL - PROPOSED ERECTION OF TWO
STOREY BLOCK CONTAINING 4 NO. ONE BEDROOM
APARTMENTS IN REAR GARDEN OF 67 MAIN STREET,
RUNCORN

It was noted that this application was deferred by the
Development Control Committee on 5 March 2019, so that
further clarification could be provided on the impacts of this
development to the conservation area, and in particular,
whether the proposal would be out of character in the
conservation area. Consideration of the item was being
tfreated as a new hearing and not a resumed hearing. This
meant that representations by speakers could be repeated
and the applicant could also speak. Additionally, any




Page 2

Member not present at the last meeting of the Committee
could take part in determining the matter.

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

Officers referred Members to the additional
paragraphs to the existing report, highlighted in bold at the
beginning of the report. Additionally, the site plans for two
previous refusals of planning permission referred to in the
last meeting by objectors, were included within the plans
pack. It was noted that Members had received a full copy of
the retained Conservation Advisor’s advice; copies of which
were available for members of the public in the public

gallery.

Since the publication of the agenda, Officers advised
that the concerns they had over certain design features had
been addressed, so the amendments would be secured by
conditions. They also confirmed that the applicant would
retain control over the site to allow the development to be
carried out. The reasons for site level and accessibility work
not being justified on the site were noted.

The Committee was addressed by Mr Campbell, who
represented a community group called Friends of Halton
Village, objecting to the scheme. He had returned to the
Committee to advise that Friends of Halton Village had read
the updated statement from the Conservation Adviser and
the group was still of the opinion that residents of Halton
Village should be heard, as they were best placed to know if
the development was in keeping with the Village. He
insisted that the development would not add character to
and was not in keeping with the Conservation Area status of
Halton Village. In addition he argued that the plans were
poor and questioned the need for this type of dwelling on the
property market, in a village setting.

The Committee was then addressed by Mr Groves,
who spoke on behalf of the applicant. He stated that the site
was set back from the main road and would have no harmful
impact on the Conservation Area. He argued that the
issues raised were not material planning considerations; the
plans were sound with all technical requirements met; and
made reference to alterations already made to surrounding
properties, despite them all being in the Conservation Area.

Councillor Howard then addressed the Committee,
speaking in objection to the proposal on behalf of Halton




Page 3

Castle Ward colleague, Councillor E. Cargill and local
residents. It was noted that the third Halton Castle Ward
Member was a Member of the Development Control
Committee, and therefore was unable to make (and had not
made) any representation regarding the application.

He stated that the fundamental objection to this
application was that it would have an adverse effect on the
Conservation Area of Halton Village. He complained that
although the Conservation Advisor had provided further
advice, there was no opportunity for the Committee to
question her. He also argued that:

e There were documents to support the concerns of the
residents;

e The outbuildings from 71 — 97 Main Street offered no
evidence that they were used for habitation in the
past;

e These properties were built in an era when large
gardens and outbuildings were characteristic;

e Some properties had been modified in the past thus
compromising the character of the Village; and

e The residents strongly disagreed with the opinion of
the Council’s retained Conservation Advisor.

Councillor Howard urged the Committee to refuse the
application; stating that the character and heritage of Halton
Village Conservation Area should be conserved for future
generations.

The Committee discussed the application and
referred to the Halton Village Conservation Area Appraisal
that was produced in 2008. That document was not formally
adopted by the Council but it was confirmed that it was a
material consideration. In the document number 67 Main
Street was considered to be a category B status, where a
category A was the highest. The National Planning Policy
and Framework (NPPF) document was also quoted in
relation to heritage assets; harm to conservation areas and
public benefits.

A proposed motion to refuse the application was put
forward by Councillor Thompson, but he was advised that
proper reasons should be included within a motion. In view
of this the Committee agreed to a 10 minute adjournment, to
enable a detailed proposed motion to be formulated.

The public left the room during the adjournment
during which Councillor Thompson prepared his proposal.
No debate between the other Members took place during




Page 4

the adjournment. After the adjournment the public returned
to the room and the meeting was formally re-convened.

Councillor Thompson put forward his proposal which
was seconded and agreed by the Committee by maijority.
Councillor J. Lowe did not speak or vote on this item
because she had left the room for a short time during the
debate.

RESOLVED: That the application is refused because
the Committee considered that the proposed development
would cause harm to the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area because of:

1. Impact on the vista from Castle Hill and the visual
relationship between the scheduled monument and
its surroundings;

Impact on visual amenity and visual unity;

The proposal is not in keeping with the setting and

physical connection of the surroundings;

4. The proposal did not result in public benefits such as
to override any harm;

5. The proposal is not in keeping with outbuildings and
the historical purpose and uses of outbuildings within
the Conservation Area; and

6. In the context of the importance of the Conservation
Area the proposal would set a precedent.

w N

Therefore the proposal was contrary to Part 16 of
NPPF and BE1, BE2 and BE12 of the Halton Unitary
Development Plan and CS20 of the Halton Core Strategy.

Meeting ended at 7.45 p.m.



Page 5

Agenda Iltem 3

REPORT TO: Development Control Committee
DATE: 13 May 2019
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director — Enterprise, Community and
Resources
SUBJECT: Planning Applications to be Determined by the
Committee
WARD(S): Boroughwide
Application No Proposal Location
18/00567/FULEIA | Proposed demolition of existing Mr Robert Waters,
workshop, lean-to-shed and picking line | WSR Recycling Ltd,
(Page 6) enclosure, and the erection of 2 no. Ditton Road, Widnes.
buildings to provide for the storage and
sorting of waste together with external
storage bays and ancillary infrastructure
including substation, water tanks and
weighbridge to provide operational
improvements, environmental control
and an increase in waste accepted from
an existing 300,000 tonnes to 450,000
tonnes per annum.
19/00080/FUL Proposed erection of storage Land at Edison Road,
warehouse (Use Class B8) adjacentto | Astmoor Industrial
(Page 39) existing unit. Estate, Runcorn,
Cheshire, WA7 1PT.
19/00190/P3JPA | Proposed change of use from office Axis House, Tudor

(Page 52)

building to 26 no. residential units.

Road, Manor Park,
Runcorn, WA7 1BD.




Page 6

APPLICATION NO:

18/00567/FULEIA

LOCATION:

Mr Robert Waters, WSR Recycling Ltd,
Ditton Road, Widnes

PROPOSAL:

Proposed demolition of  existing
workshop, lean-to shed and picking line
enclosure, and the erection of 2 no.
buildings to provide for the storage and
sorting of waste together with external
storage bays and ancillary infrastructure
including substation, water tanks and
weighbridge to provide operational
improvements, environmental control
and an increase in waste accepted from
an existing 300,000 tonnes to 450,000
tonnes per annum

WARD:

Riverside

PARISH:

AGENT(S) / APPLICANT(S):

AA Environmental Ltd, Unit 4 to 8
Cholswell Court, Shippon, Abingdon,
Oxfordshire, OX13 6HX

DEVELOPMENT PLAN ALLOCATION:
National Planning Policy Framework
(2019)

Halton Unitary Development Plan (2005)
Halton Core Strategy Local Plan (2013)

Primarily Employment Area (E1)

Priority Employment Redevelopment
Area (E2)

Environment Priority Area (BE3)

DEPARTURE

No

REPRESENTATIONS:

Written representation from 9 objectors

Emails from Riverside Ward Councillor
(within report)

KEY ISSUES:

Principle of development, regeneration
and employment; waste policy; noise,
dust, odour and other amenity issues;
drainage; contaminated land and
highway and traffic issues

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Subject to Conditions




Page 7

SITE MAP

THE APPLICATION SITE

The Site

The application site will be familiar to members as an existing a waste transfer station,
located on the corner of Ditton Road and Queensway with a land area of 3.26 hectares
and an existing gross internal floorspace of buildings on site of 5,189sgm. It is
accessed directly from Ditton Road and is located in an industrial and commercial area
in the west of Widnes. The site currently employs 52 full time employees.

The land to the south and west are well developed industrial areas. The land to the
north is currently being used as one of the construction compounds associated with
the recent Mersey Gateway development. This land has planning permission for a
lorry park and service area together with a hotel proposed in the north eastern area of
this site.

The predominant use in this area is industry. The nearest residential and sensitive
land use to the site is the residential development, some 400 m to the north. If built,
the lorry park and service area including the hotel will become the nearest sensitive
land use. 760 m to the south of the site is the Mersey Estuary, which provides
important habitat and is a Special Site of Scientific Interest (SSSI) and internationally
designated Special Protection Area and RAMSAR site.

The application before members deals with a site which is already operating as a
permitted large waste transfer and processing facility. Members will no doubt be aware
anecdotally if not formally, of issues arising from the site’s current operations
particularly with regard to odour and the prevalence of seagulls in and around the site.
The proposal has arisen as a result of a change of site ownership and the aspiration



Page 8

of the new owner to invest in the site to effect modernisation and improvement to their
operations. The proposal before you, which is outlined in detail in the report below, is
considered to result in positive changes in relation to odour and visual appearance,
such that despite the proposed increase in throughput, there will be significant
improvements resulting in a cleaner, tidier operation and a reduction in odour and
presence of seagulls. The proposal seeks to provide enclosures for the vast majority
of waste that will come through the site and the new buildings will house areas which
are currently external and exposed to the elements; — a new modern building; retention
of the existing large building; replacement of an untidy building and trommel line with
a modern building; with the only external storage area being used for inert aggregate
and two new bays for timer, wood and road sweepings. The malodorous waste
currently stored in the existing building, which operates with its doors open, will be
processed in a new building which will have an odour control system. The applicant
has agreed to improvements to boundary treatments and access as part of the overall
site enhancement.

Planning History

The site has a long history associated with the historical use and ongoing development
of the site for various waste related uses the most recent being planning permissions;-
16/00237/ADV; 16/00124/FULEIA; 12/00387/FUL; 11//119/S73; 07/00845/ADV;
07/00393/ADV; 04/00172/COU; 02/00690/WST. Of particular relevance to this
application is the planning permission granted to the applicant WSR Recycling Ltd,
12/00387/FUL for the construction of a new waste transfer station and materials
recovery facility; re-cladding of existing material recovery facility and transfer building;
use of area to south west of site for the storage of waste in open bays; associated
plant. Following this permission a further application was submitted by WSR Recycling
Ltd in 2016 for proposed amendments to existing Waste Transfer Station approved by
permission 12/00387/FUL encompassing; the increase of tonnage accepted from
200,000tpa (tonnes per annum) to 300,000tpa; proposed construction of an inert
crusher line in the South-West corner of the site, retrospective relocation of
weighbridge in the North of the site, construction of a new weighbridge office and
changes to external storage areas; and retrospective changes to the site boundary
and associated change of use. This was approved in June 2016.

THE APPLICATION

The proposal and Background

The WSR waste operation was bought by Beauparc, an Ireland based international
waste and resource company, in October 2017. Whilst Beauparc now own the site,
they have retained the original site operator name. The applicant has explained that
following a period of review, Beauparc and WSR are seeking to invest in the site to
improve recovery rates and environmental performance. The investment seeks to
improve throughput to a maximum of 450,000 tonnes per annum, with an increase in
staff to 72, 68 daytime staff plus 4 night staff.



Page 9

The site currently has permission to processes 300,000tpa. The applicant has
provided information stating that the total through put of waste at the site is currently
running at circa 250,000 tonnes per annum. This is rising year on year, as set out in
the Environmental Statement. The current split of waste by type is as follows:

. Municipal / Commercial Wastes (mixed and source segregated): 85%
. Construction and Demolition Wastes: 12%
. Waste Sector (Residual Waste): 3%

The applicant is unable to provide a direct comparison of existing and proposed waste
types, but can confirm the site’s proposed maximum annual operational throughput of
waste streams are:

Municipal 150000 tonnes
Commercial and Industrial 250000 tonnes
Construction, demolition and excavation 50000 tonnes

Permission is sought for a variety of development all associated with the existing use
as a waste transfer site as follows:-

» Demolition of the existing partial enclosure TFS1 on the submitted drawings, picking
line and the external storage bays;

* Construction of a replacement enclosure for area TFS1. The new enclosure is termed
TFS1A on the submitted drawings;

» Construction of a new enclosure TFS 4 on the submitted drawings and an associated
air management system including a 20 m high stack and filter to control odour;

* A new weighbridge and substation;

» Two new external storage bays;

* Erection of a visual and acoustic screen on the northern boundary;

» Water tanks to store rainwater and to abate run off rates; and

 Additional car parking and cycle shelters.

(Please refer to the Plans Pack).

The built development incorporates part demolition of the building to the rear of the
site and an overall floorspace increase of 5,425sgqm. The total resulting internal
floorspace on the site, taken together with that which is to be retained, would be
9,480sgm.

The applicant states that their existing permission permits a 24 hour, 7 days a week
operational period which will remain unchanged but that normal operating hours for
delivery, full processing and standard operations between the hours of 0700 to 1800
hours during week days and 0700 to 1400 on Saturday; and maintenance, dispatch
and processing within the enclosures will be undertaken on a 24 hours basis.



Page 10

Documentation

The applicant has submitted a planning application, drawings and the following
reports:

Environmental Statement — Vol 1
Environmental Statement — Vol 2 with Appendices in relation to
e Screening Opinion
e Scoping Opinion
e FRA
e Geotechnical Assessments
e Transport Statement
¢ Noise Assessment
e Particulate Emissions Management Plan
e Odour Assessment

Environmental Statement — Non-Technical Summary
Planning Application Statement

POLICY CONTEXT

National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in February 2019 to
set out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these should be
applied.

Paragraph 47 states that planning law requires for planning permission be determined
in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Decisions on application should be make as quickly as possible and within
statutory timescale unless a longer period has been agreed by the applicant in writing.

Paragraph 11 and paragraph 38 state that plans and decisions should apply a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and that local planning authorities
should work in a positive and creative way, working pro-actively with applicants to
secure developments that will improve economic, social and environmental conditions
of their areas.”

Paragraphs 80-82 states the need for planning policies and decisions to be made to
create conditions in which business can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight
to be placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity, taking into
account both local business needs and wider opportunities for development. It
encourages an adaptive approach to support local and inward investment to meet the
strategic economic and regenerative requirements of the area.



Page 11

National Planning Policy for Waste

The National Planning Policy for Waste sets ambitious aims to work towards a more
sustainable and efficient approach to resource use and management through positive
planning in delivering sustainable development and resource efficiency including
through the provision of modern infrastructure and by driving waste management up
the waste hierarchy and by securing the re-use, recovery or disposal of waste without
endangering human health or harming the environment.

Halton Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (2005)
The following Unitary Development Plan policies and policy documents are relevant
to this application: -

BE1 General Requirements for Development

BE2 Quality of Design

BE3 Environment Priority Areas

BE22 Boundary Walls and Fences

PR1 Air Quality

PR2 Noise Nuisance

PR3 Odour Nuisance

PR4 Light Pollution and Nuisance

PR14 Contaminated Land

PR16 Development and Flood Risk

MW1 All Minerals and Waste Management Developments
MW2 Requirements for All Applications

TP6 Cycling Provision as Part of New Development
TP7 Pedestrian Provision as Part of New Development
TP12 Car Parking

TP15 Accessibility to New Development

TP17 Safe Travel for All

E1 Primarily Employment Area

E2 Priority Employment Redevelopment Area

ES New Industrial and Commercial Development

Halton Core Strategy Local Plan (2013)
The following policies, contained within the Core Strategy are of relevance:

CS1 Halton’s Spatial Strategy

CS2 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CS4 Employment Land Supply and Locational Priorities
CS8 3MG - Key Area of Change

CS15 Sustainable Transport

CS18 High Quality Design

CS19 Sustainable Development and Climate Change
CS20 Natural and Historic Environment

CS23 Managing Pollution and Risk

CS24 Waste



Page 12

Joint Waste Local Plan 2013

Strategic Objectives

WMO Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
WM8 Waste Prevention and Resource Management
WM10 High Quality Design and Operation

WM11 Sustainable Waste Transport

WM12 Criteria for Waste Management Development

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Design of New Industrial and Commercial Development SPD

CONSULTATIONS

The application has been advertised via the following methods: site notices posted
near to the site, press notice, and Council website. Surrounding residents, landowners
and Ward Councillors have been notified. In accordance with the Town & Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2015 and the Town & Country
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 a further full re-
consultation was undertaken following receipt of an amended red edged drawing.

The following organisations have been consulted and any comments received have
been summarised below in the assessment section of the report where appropriate:

Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government — No comments to make in
relation to the submitted Environmental Statement

Environment Agency — No objection in principal subject to conditions in relation to a
site investigation; piling; and several informatives relating to waste. Comments on
flooding outlined in report below.

United Utilities — Objection in principal — outline in report below under ‘Flood Risk and
Drainage’ within the advice from the Lead Local Flood Authority.

Liverpool Airport — No objection but request a condition as outlined in report below.
Network Rail — Holding objection — outlined in report below.

Cheshire Policy — No objection but advise site improvements outlined in report below.
Health & Safety Executive — Do Not Advise Against.

Cadent Gas — No objection but provided information to include in decision relating to
pipeline which will be forwarded to the applicant.

Mersey Gateway Crossings Board — No comments received.

Natural England — No objection

Council Services:

HBC Contaminated Land — No Objection subject to conditions — outlined in report
below.

Local Highway Authority — No Objection subject to conditions — outlined in report
below.

Lead Local Flood Authority — No Objection subject to conditions — outlined in report
below.




Page 13

Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service — No Objection subject to conditions —
outlined in report below.

HBC Environmental Health - No Objections — outlined in report below.

HBC Regeneration Team — Separate to this application, discussions are being
undertaken with the applicant in relation to landscaping improvements to the front of
the site on Ditton Road.

REPRESENTATIONS

Representations have been received from 9 objectors raising issues which are
paraphrased below:

Health risk from air pollution

Proliferation of flies

Close to a major food outlet

Close to other industries which suffer from smells from the site

Poor access from Ditton Road

Too close to residential properties and sporting facilities

Potential for fires at this type of site

Concern that it involved incineration

Town suffers as a whole from degradation of the air and environment

Site already results in complaints being made with regard to intolerable smell;

flies; seagulls; and any number of other health hazards

e Already let down by the siting of the incinerator recently in Runcorn which we
will pay the price for in next few decades

e Allowing application would be a serious dereliction of HBC duties and
responsibility for the welfare of people of the Borough

e The company cannot contain the current amount of waste efficiently and should

not be permitted a 50% increase

Excessive bird droppings onto adjacent company’s vehicles

Poor image for the Borough from Mersey Gateway

Negative impact on character of area regeneration and environmental quality

Road safety concerns

A letter has been received from a Ward Councillor outlining concerns as follows:-

“This is an extension of the existing WSR recycling plant on Ditton Road. | expect they
will, as an expanding business, be given planning consent. It is worth saying this plant
emits some of the most appalling odours imaginable and some odour abatement
conditions must be imposed on this company to prevent the continuation of their
emissions to atmosphere. The smells from this site are as bad as Granox ever were.
They have after many years now cleaned up their act. Now is the time for WSR to
follow suit. They even stunk the town out on the day the Queen opened the Mersey
Gateway.”

In response to the re-consultation the Ward Councillor commented further:-

‘Regarding the above application, | feel it is essential that odour abatement is an
absolute priority for this company. There present operation is completely unacceptable
and to allow such a large increase in the volume of waste being treated without vastly
improved odour abatement would be a complete dereliction of the council’s duty of



Page 14

care to our residents. Please ensure conditions are attached to any permission to
make this company comply with an odour free environment.”

ASSESSMENT

Particulars of Development

Existing:-
The site comprises three distinct areas of operation which are all currently operating
under an Environmental Permit issued by the Environment Agency (EPR/SP3594CM).
These 3 areas are shown on Drawing 183131/WST/PL/002 A and include the following
activities:

» Area shown as TFS1 on the drawing: This area accommodates a partially enclosed
building a picking line and an external processing and storage area. The external
storage includes metals, road sweepings, timber and baled Refuse Derived Fuel
(RDF) — this is Refuse Derived Fuel which is defined as material that is produced from
waste, has undergone some sort of treatment process, and is intended for use as a
fuel. The process area predominantly processes skip wastes and commercial wastes
including timber/green waste and road sweepings. The area is also used for baling
and wrapping RDF, textiles and plastics.

» Area TFS2: This area comprises the main waste processing enclosure at the site.
The structure is 84m long and 36m wide and is used for the treatment of commercial,
industrial and municipal waste streams. Activities include segregation, size reduction
and the production of RDF.

* Area TFS3: This area includes the operational aggregates recycling facility. Incoming
waste is subject to mechanical and manual segregation of metals and co-incidental
materials, crushing and screening.

The main office and administration area is a two-storey structure, located in the north
west of the site. The site provides car parking for up to 30 cars and motorbikes in two
areas, on land immediately north of the office and in the car park adjacent to Ditton
Road. Plant and vehicular maintenance is undertaken in the maintenance structure,
as shown adjacent to TFS3 on the block plan.

Proposed:-

In October 2017, Beauparc purchased WSR Recycling Limited (WSR). Following a 12
month tenure and review of operations, the applicant states that Beauparc are
proposing to make a significant investment in the site. It is stated that this is to improve
site operations, minimise environmental emissions and increase capacity and
recovery rates. The intention is to enhance the current operation, creating a modern
facility to improve the sustainability of the site waste management.

WSR wish to demolish some of the existing infrastructure to free up the land to create
a new waste enclosure. The demolition includes the existing enclosure TFS1 (housing
predominantly skip waste). The new enclosure will be a modern structure offering
greater enclosure and environmental control. The revised site layout is shown Drawing
183131/WST/PL0O04 A. The existing enclosure TFS2 will remain unaltered with a
throughput of 150,000tpa. With the proposed investment in new buildings and plant



Page 15

the site will be able to process and recover 450,000 tonnes of waste per annum. The
increased tonnage will be achieved whilst improving the better management of waste
streams, control of environmental emissions, improving the appearance of the site. In
doing so it is stated that there will be no net increase in the number of approved road
movements to and from the Site.

In addition, a new weighbridge will be constructed and a new substation will ensure
sufficient power supply is provided to the operations.

The structures to be demolished and/or removed are as follows:-

 External storage and processing bays around TFS1;
* Maintenance and refuelling shed;

» Stacked containers in central area of the site; and

* TFS1, picking line and the associated storage bays.

The site layout was revised to address comments associated with the highway to the
front of the site, is presented in Drawing 183131/WST/PL004 A and includes the
following new features:

* New waste enclosure TFS4: The new TFS4 is consistent in height to the existing
enclosure
TFS2, with an apex at 15 m and eaves at 11 m. The new structure will be 65 m long
by 40 m
wide. It will be serviced by a low-level loading pit. It is designed to store and process
malodorous wastes, currently processed within TFS2 and will operate using the
following processes:

e a segregation line for plastics, paper and metals;

e trommel and shredder for size reduction; and

e sorting and packaging using balers and wrappers.

The applicant proposes that the design of the new building will provide improved odour
management and reduce dust and noise. It is anticipated that the enclosure will be
able to process up to 150,000tpa. TFS4 will be constructed in accordance with industry
Best Available Technology, including an air management system to ensure odorous
air is controlled, treated and discharged, minimising any loss of amenity and nuisance
in surrounding areas. This involves the installation of a Granulated Activated Carbon
(GAC) filtration system from which emissions will then be vented via a stack
approximately 1200mm diameter and 20m above the existing ground level situated at
the south of the building. The GAC works in such a way that air is extracted from the
building via duct work by a fan. The air passes through a dust filter, which is typically
either a centrifuge or a bagged filter. The air remains odorous and is subsequently
passed through a Granulated Activated Carbon (GAC). The GAC media is treated
carbon which is specifically designed to absorb the volatile organic compounds which
make the air odorous. The media is contained in an external vessel which is sized
dependent upon a number of factors, namely: the characteristics of the odour; velocity



Page 16

of air extraction and the required retention time. The solution is widely implemented
within the waste industry and is argued to be a robust treatment solution.

* Replacement enclosure TFS1A: The existing TFS1 and the external picking line
are to be demolished and replaced with a new enclosure TFS1A. The structure will be
consistent in design to TFS4 and involves a cladded portal frame structure, 70 m long
and 40 m wide. The structure will be 11 m at eaves and 15 m at apex. Waste types
processed at the site will include construction and demolition wastes and commercial
industrial wastes. No malodorous wastes will be processed within the building. A
picking line, trommel and shredder will operate within the structure. It will provide better
control of particulate emissions and litter. It is anticipated that the enclosure will treat
up to 100,000tpa.

o External storage bays: Due to the loss of external storage areas, two new bays
will be constructed for timber and wood storage and road sweepings.

e New Substation: a new substation is to be constructed on the north east boundary
of the site. This substation is to provide the additional supply of electricity to the
waste recovery processes.

e Enhancement of TFS3: In addition to the new buildings proposed, TFS3
operations will be enhanced through investment in new plant offering greater inert
aggregate recovery. It is anticipated that the improved processing in TFS3 will be
able to manufacture up to 50,000tpa of recycled aggregate.

In summary, based on the information provided by the applicant the following amounts
of waste will be brought through the site:-

Existing TFS2 building will process 150,000tpa

Proposed TFS4 building will process 150,000tpa

Replacement TFS1A building will process 100,000tpa

Enhanced TFS3 area will process 50,000tpa

Totalling a proposed overall annual throughput of 450,000tpa of waste.

(Please refer to Plans Pack).

Principle of Development

The site is designated as a within a Priority Employment Redevelopment Area (E2);
Primarily Employment Area (E3); and Environmental Priority Area (BE3) in the Halton
Unitary Development Plan (UDP). UDP Policy E2 provides for potential to redevelop
existing sites for employment uses. The current proposal does not seek to remove this
site from an employment use, rather a site redevelopment. Policy E3 indicates a series
of uses which it states will be acceptable within these areas, including B1 (Business),
B2 (General Industrial), B8 (Storage and Distribution) and Sui Generis uses. This
proposal does not alter the existing use of the site which falls into a mix of these uses.
Policy BE3 seeks development within these areas to raise the environmental
standards:- proposal should be of high quality design and those areas visible from
roads and rail routes should be of a high quality of design in terms of landscaping,



Page 17

boundary treatments and facing materials. The overall aim of the proposal is to seek
an improvement of the current situation at the site as a result of the re-organisation of
the waste operation within the existing and proposed buildings on the site. The
applicant has agreed to improve the boundary of the open storage area to the rear of
the site and provide a high quality boundary treatment to the north of the site adjacent
to Ditton Road which can be secured by planning condition.

It is on this basis that the principle of the development is appropriate with the
designated use of the site for a continued waste operation, is acceptable and complies
with UDP Policies E2; E3; and BE3, subject to compliance with the Waste Local Plan,
which is dealt with elsewhere in this report.

Design and Character

The scheme proposes re-development of an existing waste transfer and processing
site involving removal of some existing older and dysfunctional buildings and their
replacement with more appropriate and modern alternatives.

The proposal replaces a building currently used to store waste and an external picking
line and trommel, with a building with a floor area of 2,800sqm. The building, TFS1A,
has a proposed overall ridge height of 15m and 11m to the eaves. No malodorous
waste is to be stored in this building but it will house the current external picking line,
trommel and shredder. The building materials will be cladding, consistent with a portal
steel structure, colour to be agreed by condition.

In addition a further new building is proposed which incorporates the Granulated
Activated Carbon (GAC) filtration system and odour extraction through a 20m stack at
the south elevation. It is in this building that malodourous waste will be stored and the
resulting air emitted will be discharge via the stack, pre-treated through the GAC filter,
as required through its operational controls.

Additional constructions include a new weighbridge and substation, the latter being
located to the front of the existing building near the north boundary of the site. Given
the location of the substation and its utilitarian design, it is considered that use of an
appropriate landscaping scheme would mitigate the visual impact of it. It is suggested
that use of ‘green screen’ in this area, to the front of the north elevation of TFS2 and
around the substation, would improve the appearance of the development in this
prominent location and this can be secured by planning condition.

The site has several boundary treatments already in place, along the eastern boundary
the wall is in the control of the Local Authority, to the south the existing palisade fencing
forms a functional treatment. The applicant also intends to provide improved
enclosures to the external aggregate storage bays. The boundary to the west will not
be altered. The site has an extant planning approval for a corrugated boundary
treatment to the north of the site, however this is now seen as undesirable by both the
LPA and the applicant. As such the applicant proposes a solid alternative to assist in



Page 18

mitigating any residual odours, minimise noise emanating from within the site and to
provide an attractive and secure enclosure. At the proposed height of 5.2m, the
materials are critical to the functionality of this boundary treatment to enable stability
yet achieving aesthetic quality. A number of options are available in order to achieve
this therefore a planning condition is recommended to enable the most appropriate
treatment to be agreed post decision.

There is some opportunity for landscaping to the front of the site fronting the existing
building which sits at a higher level. Much of the land to the east and the highway land
to the front is not in the control of the applicant. However they are in discussion with
Halton’s Regeneration Officer to explore the potential for landscape improvements in
the areas they do not control.

There is an opportunity with this proposal to address and improve the boundary to the
south off the site which can be viewed from the west coast main line railway line. The
applicant has advised that the south west site boundary will be enhanced in area TFS3
by the erection of a green living wall on a trellis. The metal screen in the south east
will be screened similarly by a trellis fence. However, whilst the details of this can dealt
with through a boundary condition the commitment of the applicant is subject to
approval from Network Rail as it will be within 5m of their land boundary.

Cheshire Police — Designing Out Crime Officer has commented as follows:-

“ The combination of 2 metre fence and 5.2 mtre fencing off Ditton Road provides a
good solid perimeter to the site.

* The rear fence in the area indicated in the illustration below is potentially vulnerable.
Consideration should be given to planting defensible planting to make the fence harder
to access or consider barbed wire / razor wire and also ensuring that the CCTV covers
the rear area

* The risk to the site will be reduced by having a fire watch and a security presence.

» An entrance control barrier will be required to control access on to the site

* Details of the proposed lighting scheme would be useful to see. The site should be
fitted with dawn to dusk lighting with enhanced lighting in areas that are used for 24
hours.

« Signage should be displayed round the site highlighting different areas, emergency
contacts etc.”

The applicant has confirmed that there is a 1.7m high boundary to the east; a 2m metal
fence to the south and west. The northern boundary is secured by a lockable gate.
There is a current system of CCTV across the site and new lighting and video systems
will be installed on the new enclosures. Processing will take place at night so there will
be some staff on site plus security through the night. In addition the applicant is in
discussion with the Council regarding boundary planting and are open to opportunities
to hinder unwelcome access.

On this basis it is considered that the proposed alterations to the built form on the site
and boundary treatments will represent a significant improvement on the existing site,



Page 19

will not result in additional threats to security of the site and therefore wholly consistent
with UDP Policies BE3, BE22 and E2 and E3.

Noise, Dust, Odour and Other Amenity Issues

The applicant has provided surveys and reports within the Environmental Statement
(ES) to address noise, dust and odour and the Council’'s Environmental Health Officer
has provided the following comments in response:-

“Noise

The application is sited some 400m from the nearest residential dwellings and
approximately 40m from a proposed hotel. The ES appraises the impact of
construction, and acknowledges the potential to cause some short term impact on the
local area. The application will be subject to a CEMP (Construction Environmental
Management Plan) and it is proposed that most of the working will take place during
daytime hours, unless otherwise agreed with the Council, which should adequately
control the noise.

The operational noise has been assessed in line with BS4142 and determined that the
noise at residential dwellings will be significantly below background levels.

Odour

Odour across the site boundary has been a problem from the site given the limited
ability for the site to install controls. The application will ensure that the odorous waste
is handled in an air tight enclosure with air emissions controlled through a stack and
carbon filter. Rapid opening and shutting doors should further minimise odours.
Neither the Council nor the Environment Agency report complaints regarding odours
from the site in residential areas of Widnes. On the basis of this the ES concludes that
there will be a long term positive impact on odour emissions from the site.

In addition it is worth noting that the site is subject to an environmental permit issued
by the Environment Agency, complete with conditions to control odour emissions, and
as such the planning consent should not duplicate this role. Having said that the
application clearly demonstrates that there will be no deterioration in odour emissions
from the site and in fact should improve the environment around the site. This together
with the distance of the site to residential properties satisfies Environmental Health
that there would be no adverse impact on residents.

Air Quality

There is no increase in the number of vehicles that it is proposed will serve the site
and will result in better containment of waste. The ES therefore concludes that there
will be no adverse impact on air quality due to the proposed development.



Page 20

Conclusions

Based on the above Environmental Health would not object to or have any adverse
comments to make on the application, as there is no predicted adverse impact on
amenity to residents in the area.”

It should be noted that although no formal complaints have been received by the
Councils as expressed by the Environmental Health Officer, both Council Officers and
Ward Councillors are aware of the odour issues at the site and which are experienced
in the vicinity of the site and the surrounding area.

A number of objections have been made regarding the existing and potential of issues
resulting from the development including noise, dust, odour and other amenity issues
and are concerned that there will only be an increase in these should the proposed
development be approved. The applicant has expressed that the proposal will alter the
operations on the site in terms of how waste is stored and odours controlled. Whilst
the comments from objectors are material to the determination of the application, it is
important to understand the applicant’s explanation that one of the primary aims of the
site redevelopment is to improve the existing conditions at the site that will result in a
reduction in the current levels of odour emissions and other amenity issues.

It should be noted that under the Environment Agency permit for the site operations,
all matters on site relating to;- odours; bird nuisance; flies nuisance; resulting air quality
from stack — are controlled under that permit.

On the basis of the above, the Council’s Environmental Health Officer has confirmed
that they raise no objections regarding the application. They confirm that they are
satisfied that the noise report demonstrates that, given the location of the site, the
proposal poses minimal likely impact on residential amenity. With regard to odours
they state that the site will be subject to the Environmental Permit issued and
conditioned by the Environment Agency and, as such, any planning consent should
not duplicate this role. Notwithstanding that, they acknowledge that the applicant
states that the waste on site will managed in such a way so as to minimise odour from
the site. On this basis, together with the distance from the nearest residential areas,
they confirm that they are satisfied that the odours from the site can be adequately
controlled given the information provided with the application.

The applicant has clarified the number of proposed vehicle movements which are to
remain consistent with the current use of the site and is reported below.

On this basis the proposal is considered to comply with UDP Policies BE1, BE3, MW1,
MW2, MW3, PR1, PR2 and PR3.

Airport Safequarding

Liverpool John Lennon Airport (LJLA) have confirmed that they raise no objection in
principle. They have however requested a conditions be attached to any planning



Page 21

permission requiring submission of a Bird Hazard Management Plan for “scavenging
and or nesting and loafing birds”.

The applicant has agreed to the attachment of this condition.

On the basis of The Town & Country Planning (safeguarded aerodromes, technical
sites and military explosives storage areas) direction 2002 that the local planning
authority has considered not only the individual potential bird attractant features of the
proposed development but also whether the development, when combined with
existing land features, will make the safeguarded area, or part of it, more attractive to
birds or create a hazard such as bird flightlines across aircraft flightpaths. In this
instance the proposed measures within the development are considered to help
mitigate the current issues at the site pertaining to bird congregations as a result of
better enclosed buildings and control of emissions via a GAC filter and stack in the
building to house malodorous waste.

However, given the safety implications and the request of Liverpool JLA it is
considered that the recommended condition is added and the Bird Hazard
Management Plan submitted to ensure that maximum effort is made to minimise
potential bird hazard.

On this basis it is considered that the proposal complies with UDP Policy MW1.

Highway Safety

The Local Highway Authority initially raised an objection to the proposal which has
since been addressed through the submission of an amended drawing and they have
provided comments as follows:-

Final comments:-

“The applicant provided details of a widening to the access to the site on plan number
ITM14349-GA-005 which satisfies the Highway departments concerns regarding
highway safety. The widening would have to be carried out either through a legal
agreement with the Highways department to work within the highway or alternatively
by the Highway authority at the applicants expense.

The tracking details provided demonstrate that it is possible for large/articulated
vehicles to access and exit the site unencumbered

Parking

(Including cycle/disabled/motorcycle/taxi/drop-off) comment on compliance with UDP
(+other) Standards)

The application sets out that 72 full time staff will be employed. There are, it appears,
two shift patterns with the majority of staff on the day shift. The provision of 59 car
parking spaces appears to be acceptable provision and we would not have any
objections to the application in terms of parking numbers.



Page 22

The application proposes an area for parking at the north of the site. This area falls
within an area of highway adoption. Whilst the parking layout would be an acceptable
use, this area of parking would have to be kept open, unfenced, ungated and available
for use by the general public. Any obstruction of this area would constitute an
obstruction of the highway and could result in enforcement action.

Access by sustainable modes
(including bus access (UDP 400m compliance) walk access, travel planning) (see GTA
thresholds/local circumstances) (Greenways —UDP)

There is a bus stop within easy access to the site.

Construction Phase Considerations
(Inc wheelwash, routing construction management plan, personnel parking/facilities)

Should Planning Approval be obtained, any alterations to the highway required should
be carried out by the highway maintenance section at the applicant’s expense or via
a relevant legal agreement to work in the highway.

Any areas of hardstanding should be constructed in such a way as to prevent surface
water draining onto the publically adopted highway.

Transport Assessment/Traffic Impact
(if appropriate given thresholds in GTA/local circumstances)

A Transport Statement has been provided. Since 2016 and the advent of works to
Mersey Gateway, there has been a change in traffic numbers in and around the Ditton
Interchange. As far as numbers are concerned it is clear that 26 movements per hour
does not constitute a significant traffic flow in and out of the site. We do not think that
there is a wider traffic issue as a result of this application.

CONSLUSION
The Highway Authority recommend approval of this application.

Conditions

. Parking arrangement adjacent to Ditton Road to be kept open, unrestricted and
available for public use.

. Alterations to the access to be carried out either under legal licence or by the
Council.”

On the basis of the amended layout drawing, the Local Highway Authority is satisfied
that the access can fully accommodate the movement of vehicles and the provision of
car parking both within the site and on the adjacent highway is appropriate for the level
of employment within the site. As such the Local Highway Authority raise no
objections, no significant transport or highway safety issues are raised and the



Page 23

proposal is acceptable based on NPPF, and UDP Polices TP6, TP7, TP12, TP15 and
TP17.

Ecology
No ecological information has been submitted with the application. However, the

development site has been an operational waste facility and there is no vegetation on
site. The Council’s retained adviser has confirmed that the submitted information
within the Environmental Statement is appropriate for their assessment.

Their comments are as follows:-

“European Sites
The development is near to the following European sites which are protected under
the Habitats Regulations 2017:

e Mersey Estuary SPA; and
e Mersey Estuary Ramsar.

| have reviewed the proposal submitted by the applicant and considered the possibility
of likely significant effects under the Habitats Regulations 2017 using the source-
pathway-receptor model. | advise there is no pathway that could give rise to likely
significant effects on the European sites and it does not warrant a detailed Habitats
Regulations Assessment report for the following reasons:

The applicant has commissioned a noise assessment (MEC Acoustic, Noise
Assessment, October 2018). Whilst the Mersey Estuary SPA and Ramsar is not
included as an ecological receptor the assessment reasonably discounts any impact
on the Mersey Estuary SPA and Ramsar due to:

e the separation distance (760m) and existing background noise. There are
several commercial operations between WSR Recycling Ltd and the estuary
including 2 freight lines, a freight liner terminal and distribution warehouse;

e the proposed increased processing capacity will not lead to a change in noise
characteristics associated with the current operations e.g. e.g. HGV
movements, trommel, conveyor, generators, excavator, crushing bucket,
screen and general yard noise;

e Whilst the application would see processing capacity increase (150ktpa), the
noise assessment states that a decrease or broadly similar noise situation is
anticipated as the increase in processing will be achieved without the need for
additional HGV movements or new processing plant; Further

e The majority of plant will be located within new units, and the existing buildings,
hoarding and barrier are also expected to partially screen noise sources.

| am therefore satisfied that there will be no likely significant effects on European Sites
and no further action is required in this instance.



Page 24

They further advise that whilst the development is near to a number of European sites
protected under the Habitats Regulations, no pathway could give rise to likely
significant effects on the European sites and a detailed Habitats Regulations
Assessment report is not warranted. It is also advised that the development is unlikely
to harm the features of any locally designated sites and that buildings to be demolished
have negligible bat roost potential. Natural England confirm that they have no
comments.”

On this basis the Local Planning Authority has fulfilled its obligation with respect to
Habitats Regulations Assessment and no further ecological information has been

requested.

Flood Risk and Drainage

The Lead Local Flood Authority comments on this application are as follows:

“It is proposed that surface water from the new development be drained by the existing
systems which connect to combined sewers on Ditton Road, with storage added to
attenuate storm water, (for the specific proposed development areas only) reducing
peak runoff by up to 71%. For the development areas only this meets with the
requirements of the Council’s SFRA to reduce brownfield rates by a minimum of 50%
in critical drainage areas. However it is also noted that new parking areas and
hardstanding may be proposed and this is not detailed in the application or
calculations. It is understood that this includes a ‘permeable’ area to the south west of
the site, which on a recent site visit did not appear to allow much infiltration and the
areas also appeared to be being used for open storage (which EA may comment on).
This is also the area affected by flood zone river flooding. | am concerned therefore
that there may be both issues with additional runoff and water quality from these areas,
and a formal proposal would be required if a permeable area is to be used OR this
area should be included in the new development and attenuation calculations and
measures taken to improve water quality. It will also be necessary to better understand
the system capacity to ensure it can take the proposed runoff in the design storm event
including climate change.

It is understood that United Ultilities have concerns over the existing sewer connections
being the first approach for surface water drainage and that soakaways or watercourse
should be considered. It appears that soakaways are ruled out for the majority of the
site due to made ground/contamination, but there is a watercourse to Marsh Brook to
the east of the site. It is noted from the site visit however that there is an embankment
of approx. 6m at this side of the site and the piped watercourse sits beneath this in the
highway beyond. The only alternative is to connect to a manhole in Network Rail Land
which involves crossing the railway. LLFA are also aware of contamination/blockage
issues with this watercourse. Therefore, connecting to a system this deep is
considered to have viability issues and the LLFA would consider it unreasonable to
require this of the developer, particularly given the proposal to use existing sewer



Page 25

connections and reduce runoff and this is likely to leave the existing sewer connection
as the only option.

It is also noted that whilst the development site falls within Flood zones 1, 2 and 3,
new development is confined to the Flood Zone 1 and 2 areas and the proposed use
is less vulnerable. Therefore the site is compatible with the proposed use. However
EA may wish to comment further on this.

Given all of the above | would recommend that the application can be approved with
the following conditions:

No development shall take place until details of the implementation, maintenance and
management of the sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority. (This shall include setting of building
threshold levels to be above EA surface water flood risk levels where applicable.) The
scheme shall be implemented and thereafter managed and maintained in accordance
with the approved details. Those details shall include:

i. A management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for i) drainage to soakaway, including
calculations and arrangements to secure the operation of the sustainable
drainage scheme throughout its lifetime or ii) if i) is not feasible then drainage
to watercourse or iii) if i) or ii) is not feasible connection to any system adopted
by, any public body or statutory undertaker.

ii. Ratification of hard paved/permeable areas across the site together with
appropriate treatment plants to ensure containment of silt/pollutants eg. Bypass
separator.

iii.  Interceptors and attenuation structures and calculations to demonstrate a
reduction in surface water runoff rate to a minimum of 50% of existing runoff
rates for ANY new hardstanding/roof areas as a minimum, with additional
improvements for existing runoff where practical (for example by a new
permeable paving system to replace the existing permeable/unpaved areas).
Calculation should demonstrate no flooding to buildings in the NPPF design
event (1 in 100 year + climate change allowance) and include an assessment
of existing drainage system capacity.

No development shall be occupied until a verification report confirming the system has
been constructed in accordance with the approved details have been submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority.”

In response to this the applicant has suggested that the last sentence wording be
amended to relate to ‘new’ development only to reflect the proposals continuation of
the existing use of the site and the LLFA has agreed to this.

The Environment Agency provided their comments as a response to the applicant’s
explanations of issues raised following initial queries by the EA in relation to the impact



Page 26

on controlled waters and these are as follows — the EA response and concluding
observations on the application are in bold:-

1. Land Contamination

We believe the Geo-Environmental Report submitted as part of the Environmental
Statement details the information requested to discharge part 1 of the proposed
condition. We would respectively suggest that the condition starts at part 2 and reads
as follows:

‘The applicant must agree the scope of a site investigation scheme with the Council
taking into account the potential receptors, including the culvert. An Addendum
detailed risk assessment and remedial strategy should be prepared and submitted in
accordance with Environment Agency Contaminated Land Report 11 ‘Model
Procedures for Managing Contaminated Land’ following the completion of the
investigation and associated monitoring.

We are satisfied that sufficient information has been provided to negate the
inclusion of part 1 of recommended condition ‘Land contamination’ in relation
to the provision of a preliminary risk assessment.

2. Culvert condition

With regard to the condition and the comments relating to the culverted surface water,
we advise on behalf of our Client as follows:

The culvert runs under the Highway Authority land, Crown Estate property, and
Network Rail land prior to emerging at Marsh Brook. There appears to be only two
accessible locations (manholes from within the western pavement of the highway). At
no point does the culvert cross WSR land. The culvert invert is at least 7 m below the
road surface. Records we have uncovered corroborate it runs to the south, however
there appears to be no accessible manhole from which to obtain a downstream
sample. Environmental Consultancy E3P did manage to monitor the locations
downstream, albeit from the Marsh Brook itself as it daylights from the culvert. We do
not have a copy of the plan they refer to in the report and are seeking this at the time
of writing. Whilst we recognise that the Marsh Brook and culverted channel represent
the nearest sensitive controlled water receptor. WSR cannot be responsible for
surveying, maintaining or monitoring a third-party asset. Whilst WSR have advised
that they are happy to work with Halton Borough Council and the Environment Agency
to determine how this controlled water can be collectively assessed and how the land
quality at the WSR site potentially impacts upon it, they cannot accept any condition
requiring WSR to undertake surveys and associated maintenance. We would advise
that this discussion would form part of the land contamination investigation design.

We acknowledge the comments made above and have amended the relevant
conditions accordingly as detailed below. We note the comments in relation to
working with Halton Borough Council and the Environment Agency to discuss
an appropriate way forward to assess this controlled water receptor as part of
the land contamination investigation design and we have no objection to this.

3. Foundation Risk Assessment

The need for this is presented in the AAe Geo-Environmental report and would form
part of the remedial design, required under the Land Contamination Conditions. We
do not believe there is any need for a standalone condition.

We recommend the standalone condition ‘GWO03’ in relation to piling is included
within any planning permission granted for the site given piled foundation are



Page 27

proposed to ensure the underlying sandstone aquifer is adequately protected.
Standard land contamination conditions will not require the submission of a
piling risk assessment that is protective of controlled waters.

4. Other matters raised
We note the other comments raised.
Noted.

5. The EA do refer to an absence of a borehole log. The report contains all the data,
but it can be hard to identify from the multiple split version. (EA provided advice to the
applicant in relation to the presentation of this data).

We have successfully downloaded the relevant information referred to above.

On the basis of the above discussions the Environment Agency have recommended
the following conditions:-

“Condition — Land contamination

No development approved by this planning permission shall commence until a
remediation strategy to deal with the risks associated with contamination of the site
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. This
strategy will include the following components:

1. A site investigation scheme, based on (preliminary risk assessment) to provide
information for a detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected,
including those off site.

2. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment referred to in
(2) and, based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full
details of the remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken.

3. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (3) are complete and
identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages,
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action.

Any changes to these components require the written consent of the local planning
authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

Reason

To ensure that the development is not put at unacceptable risk from, or adversely
affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution in line with the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Condition — Verification

Prior to any part of the permitted development being bought into use a verification
report demonstrating completion of the works set out in the approved remediation
strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved,
in writing, by the local planning authority. The report shall include results of sampling
and monitoring carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to
demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have been met. It shall also include any
plan (a long-term monitoring and maintenance plan) for longer-term monitoring of
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, as
identified in the verification plan, and for the reporting of this to the local planning
authority.

Reason
To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to human health or the water



Page 28

environment by demonstrating that the requirements of the approved verification
plan have been met and that remediation of the site is complete. This is in line with
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Condition - Piling

Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be
permitted other than with the express written consent of the local planning authority,
which may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that
there is no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason
To ensure that the proposed piling activity is protective of controlled waters in line
with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Request for consultation on discharge of condition
We ask to be consulted on the details submitted for approval to your Authority to
discharge this condition and on any subsequent amendments/alterations.”

The proposal has satisfied the requirements of both the Lead Local Flood Authority
and the Environment Agency in relation to the drainage of the site. Although concerns
have been raised by United Utilities in relation to the reliance on existing sewers, for
reasons of practicality, land ownership restrictions and viability, it is considered that it
would be unreasonable to refuse the application on the basis of this. United Utilities
are obliged to permit connections for drainage purposes, providing that applicants
have fully demonstrated that the drainage hierarchy has been used and that other
opportunities are unworkable. On this basis the proposal satisfies UDP Policy PR16
and the NPPF.

Contaminated Land

Whilst the Environment Agency has commented in relation to ground conditions advice
is also taken from the Council’s Land Contamination Officer and those comments are
as follows:-

“The applicant has submitted an Environmental Statement in support of the application
that includes within the appendices an environmental risk assessment covering land
contamination impacts.

e Geo-environmental risk assessment, WSR Recycling, ref 183131/ERA/001, AA
Environmental Ltd, October 2018.

The above document presents a detailed desk study, site walkover and preliminary
risk assessment. Whilst no new site investigations were undertaken for this
assessment, a significant investigation was undertaken by RPS Ltd on the site in 2012
and this is heavily relied upon for this current review. That work is approaching 7 years
old, however it is unlikely that the key geo-environmental factors have changed
significantly in that period.

The summary of the assessment is that there are a number of potentially significant
impacts as a result of soil and groundwater contamination present on site as a result



Page 29

of past land-uses.. At this stage a number of mitigation measures are recommended,
namely the effective encapsulation of the impacted soils beneath hardstanding — it is
understood that the site is to have a concrete of tarmac surface where not occupied
by buildings — breaking pollutant linkages to human health and to intfroduce some
betterment to the groundwater situation by reducing infiltration (also enhanced by the
improvement of drainage on site). A moderate ground gas risk has been identified for
the reduced level elements of the new buildings and basic level, in line with situation
CS2 as per BS8485, of gas protection measures will be required.

There are also a number of data gaps identified in the assessment and conceptual
model that need to be filled via additional site investigation, which will inform a
remediation strategy for the site. The report makes sound recommendations for the
additional works as listed in table 6.1 in the conclusions section of the report. Given
the level of assessment completed to date and the need for demolition of buildings
before investigations can take place, | believe it is both practicable and reasonable for
these additional assessment actions and the subsequent detailed remedial strategy to
be submitted as part of conditions on an approval.

I note that there have been ongoing discussions between the applicant and the
Environment Agency regarding the risks to controlled waters and issues relating to the
culvert in close proximity to the eastern boundary of the site. Proposals for further site
investigation and assessment will need to take the requirements of the EA into
account.

Therefore, | have no objection in principle to the application but would recommend that
any approval is conditioned to require the submission of a plan for further site
investigation and assessment, remedial strategy and subsequent verification
reporting.”

It is recommended that the Council’s Contaminated Land Officer's conclusions are
formed into a suitably wording planning condition. The comments of the Environment
Agency — which also recommend conditions in relation to contaminated land and
monitoring of the culvert - can be attached to any planning permission as an
informative.

Other Waste Issues, Sustainable Development and Climate Change

The Councils retained advisor in relation to issues relating to waste and sustainability
has provided the following comments:-

“Having reviewed the submitted Environmental Statement | advise that, subject to the
satisfactory receipt of any additional information required by the Council under
paragraph 25 of the EIA Regulations, it satisfies these requirements and can be used
as a basis for determination of the application.

Merseyside and Halton Joint Waste Local Plan (WLP)

The proposal assists in achieving the vision and six of the strategic objectives (SO1,
S02, SO3, SO4, SO6 & SO7) of the Waste Local Plan. It helps meet the resource
recovery-led strategy by providing additional treatment facilities to balance against
export for landfill and residual waste treatment outside of Merseyside and Halton,
therefore helping Merseyside and Halton achieve net self-sufficiency in terms of waste
management.



Page 30

The site is an existing operational facility. It delivers some of the existing capacity
requirements of the WLP area and for Halton in particular, therefore its continued
operation is supported by policy WM7 of the WLP. Compliance with policies WM1,
WM2, WM3 and WM5 was not required due to it being an operational facility.
Nevertheless, it does fall within the Area of Search for Halton.

The proposal involves demolition and construction and as such policy WM8 applies. It
is proposed that a SWMP will be produced for the construction phase. This can be
incorporated into the CEMP and secured using a suitably worded planning condition.

Policy WM10 (High Quality Design and Operation of Waste Management Facilities)
also applies. The policy requires environmental performance and sustainable design
to achieve a BREEAM Excellent rating or equivalent standard for industrial buildings;
the design and appearance of the building to take account of its setting, and for
unacceptable impacts to be avoided.

The new buildings are proposed to be similar to the existing warehouse on site, and
lie within an industrial area, although | will be guided by planning colleagues regarding
acceptability of design. Amenity impacts are addressed through the environmental
statement and | will be guided by technical specialists as to whether proposed
measures are sufficient.

It is not proposed the BREEAM Excellent rating will be achieved as the buildings are
not heated or insulated and contain no fixed waste infrastructure. However, it is stated
that LED lighting will be used, improved environmental performance will also be
achieved through a shift from diesel to electric power. Consideration is being given to
use of solar panels on the roof. Rainwater harvesting is also proposed on two buildings
and surface water attenuation on one building. The harvested rainwater will be re-used
for site purposes. Whilst not achieving BREEAM Excellent rating, | am satisfied that
measures will be put in place to achieve improved environmental performance. These
measures could be secured using a suitably worded condition.

I will be guided by Highways colleagues as to whether sufficient information has been
submitted to comply with policy WM11 (Sustainable Waste Transport).

Subject to Environmental Health and Drainage colleagues being satisfied, | consider
that sufficient information has been submitted to demonstrate compliance with policy
WM12 (Criteria for Waste Management Development).”

In relation to the land allocation policies for waste, whilst the area is identified as being
within an Area of Search for Halton, there are no site allocation or search policies to
apply to development at existing waste sites, of which this is one. Rather any proposed
additional development at an existing waste site is controlled through the application
of development management policies in relation to design, operation and construction
phase activities. As such this proposal complies with those related policies WM8 and
WM10 of the Waste Local Plan. Matters of highway safety and environmental health
are dealt with elsewhere in this report. However with specific regard to Policy WM11,
the site provides a choice of transport for staff — cycle parking is provided within the
scheme and the site is close to bus links; improved site screening is proposed with the
details to be agreed by condition; the site access will be improved. The applicant has



Page 31

provided additional information to address the requirement for an assessment of
alternative transport and carbon emissions and this is reported below.

With regard to Waste Policy WM10, Halton Core Strategy Policy CS19 (Sustainable
Development and Climate Change) seeks to encourage BREEAM Excellent standard
from 2013. As a new build, it is also expected that the building should comply with
BREEAM Excellent rating, as required by the policy WM10. The Supporting Statement
indicates that it is not possible to meet BREEAM rating standards due to the proposed
nature of the waste transfer station and commercial arrangements. The applicant has
provided a detailed response in respect to BREEAM and policies CS19 and WM10.
They argue that efforts to secure a BREEAM rating would be inappropriate and
counterproductive in this case. Amongst other factors, they cite;- a site wide shift from
diesel power to electrical-powered systems; LED lighting is to be used; translucent
roof panels to be used to allow natural light in; and potential for solar panels.

When considered against the justification to policies CS19 and WM10 this justification
is considered acceptable and it is not considered that refusal of planning permission
could be justified on these grounds. The overall improved environmental performance
in relation to the buildings and operations are in conformity with the Development Plan
when taken as a whole, and meet the principles of achieving sustainable development
as required by the NPPF.

The applicant has provided additional information to clarify how the proposal
addresses the requirements of policy WM11 as set out below:-

WM11 - 1. Make use of alternatives to road transport for movement of wastes
(such as water and rail transport and, where appropriate, use of pipelines and
conveyors to neighbouring sites), wherever possible.

“The applicant has no direct access to railway sidings or port facilities. There can be
no loading onto the railway along the southern boundary. WSR are seeking to work
with other companies in the regeneration area (Stobarts) to determine suitable loading
facilities that could feed onward recovery sites. Currently no commercial contracts
have been entered into, but the economic use of the local rail heads is an objective for
WSR. This will continue to be explored.

Currently predominantly Refuse Derived Fuel is locally used at the Runcorn (EFW
site). In the event that surplus material is generated, export is a potential outlet utilising
the local port facilities, subject to commercial viability.”

WM11 — 2. Ensure there are sustainable choices of travel for its employees and
visitors (such as, walking, cycling, public transport).

“The application contains the commitment to promote green travel for its employees
and operatives including cycling, walking, car sharing and the use of public transport.
The promotion of more sustainable travel options will be fully detailed in a Travel Plan,
which will be produced prior to construction works commencing and is to be a condition



Page 32

of any planning permission. Increased biking facilities are proposed at the
development drawings.”

WM11 - 3. Provide mitigation for the effects of road transport on local amenity
including use of screening, sound insulation and time tabling traffic
movements.

“Junction improvements from the site to Ditton Road are being proposed, that will
reduce any potential bottle necking at the entrance and subsequent idling on the
external road network and improve safety over the current approved configuration.

The dispatch of recovered waste/materials is programmed to occur less intensively in
key operational periods when the road network is at its busiest. The site is fully
screened to the north minimise noise and emissions entering the local area. To the
south, east and west the new facilities will screen emissions. The majority of loading
and unloading occurs within the onsite enclosures.

The use of larger transport vehicles results in greater efficiencies per tonne transferred
to and from the site.”

WM11 - 4. Ensure safe access to and from the public highway and adequate
capacity of local highway infrastructure.

“As mentioned previously, the current configuration of the access at the site can cause
bottle necking. A proposed re-configuration has been submitted to the Council to
ensure safe access and to stop idling on the existing carriage way.

The design of the site has been completed to ensure that emergency vehicles can
have unrestricted access to all areas of the site.”

WM11 - 5. Reduce the impact of transport on climate change and carbon
emissions.

“Whilst the vehicles carrying loads has increased in weight and the assumption is
carbon emissions, the increased load capacity ensures greater efficiency in terms of
the tonnes transferred per vehicle movement and at worst is neutral in CO2 emissions
per tonne.

Although not stipulated in the Environmental Statement, WSR and its parent company
Beauparc are committed to greening its fleet of haulage vehicles. The group are
progressively replacing the HGV fleet to new vehicles with Euro(vi) compliant engines.

The typical age of the WSR Heavy Goods Vehicles is currently at 9 years old. This is
primatrily the fleet that was acquired with the facility. WSR and Beauparc’s investment
regime is reducing the average age of its plant to circa 5 years old. The intention is for
this to be achieved over the next four year period. This investment and replacement
of the oldest plant improves the reliability but more significantly directly reduces carbon
and particulate emissions. This is due to the engines improvement in efficiency and
improved mileage rates. This policy and investment are and will continue to reduce
greenhouse emissions.



Page 33

The proposed introduction of the travel plan for staff and operatives will encourage the
use of sustainable transport and reduce the emissions and carbon footprint of this
form.

The assessment presented in the Environmental Statement has been undertaken in
accordance with the Environmental Protection UK and Institute of Air Quality
Management guidance and determined as negligible.”

With particular reference to traffic impact the applicant has provided the following
clarification of the submitted Transport Statement:-

“To ensure a robust assessment was developed, conservative assumptions were
applied on the load weight by waste type. These are derived from the current load
data. The assumptions are detailed in the Transport Statement. Table 5.2 of the
Transport Statement looks at the tonnages operating in each building per annum and
assesses the number of trips per enclosure for import and export. For the import of
waste, this identified there would be 21.1 two-way movements associated with import.
For export, recovered and treated materials/waste are bulked up and transferred over
a 16 hour period during weekdays and 7 hours on Saturday. The assessed two way
movements are 4.8 per hour. The combined number of two way movements is 25.9
two way movements per hour.

In reality the number of two-way movements is over assessed and less will occur for
the proposed 450,000 tonnes per annum. This is for the following reasons:

e Average load weight has been conservatively derived. In reality they are
currently higher. The tonnage per load will further increase with proposed
investment in the WSR HGV fleet;

o Whilst imports will occur during core processing hours during week days
and Saturdays, exports will occur 24/7 and note solely over a 16 hour period.
The greater dispatch periods will reduce the number of export movements
from 4.8 per hour;

e The assessment assumes that there will be no combined two way
movements i.e. ‘piggy backing’. This is where WSR vehicles importing
waste for processing are then loaded for dispatch. This occurs on an
estimated 10% of incoming loads and will reduce two way movements by
the same percentage.”

It is considered that the proposal complies with WLP WM11.

The proposal complies with Policy WM12 on the basis of the information that has been
submitted in relation to the above.

WLP Policy WMO reflects the NPPF requirement to take a positive approach to
approve planning applications that achieve sustainable development. The remainder
of the Policies within the JWLP seek measures by which proposals can achieve this.



Page 34

Given that the details provided by the applicant have satisfied the policy requirements
of the WLP and the waste policy of Halton’s UDP, it is considered that the proposal
complies with WMO.

Other Matters Arising as a Result of Consultation

The Council received the following response from Newtwork Rail in relation to land in
their ownership adjoining the site to the south:-

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

A storage bay is proposed adjacent to the railway boundary. Network Rail is
concerned that this will increase loading and increase the liability at the railway
boundary.

Alterations in loading must be agreed with Network Rail within 15m of the
railway boundary. Additionally the storage bay must not be placed hard against
or in close proximity to the railway boundary and should be situated so that it
will not impact the railway and its boundary as a permanent arrangement.

Until we have details of the storage bay and agree loading and location we are
placing a holding objection to the proposal.

The developer is to submit directly to Network Rail, a Risk Assessment and
Method Statement (RAMS) for all works to be undertaken within 10m of the
operational railway under Construction (Design and Management) Regulations,
and this is in addition to any planning consent. Network Rail would need to be
re-assured the works on site follow safe methods of working and have also
taken into consideration any potential impact on Network Rail land and the
existing operational railway infrastructure. Builder to ensure that no dust or
debris is allowed to contaminate Network Rail land as the outside party would
be liable for any clean-up costs. Review and agreement of the RAMS will be
undertaken between Network Rail and the applicant/developer. The applicant
/developer should submit the RAMs directly to:
AssetProtectionLNWNorth@networkrail.co.uk

The developer/applicant must ensure that their proposal, both during
construction and as a permanent arrangement, does not affect the safety,
operation or integrity of the existing operational railway / Network Rail land.

There must be no physical encroachment of the proposal onto Network Rail
land, no over-sailing into Network Rail air-space and no encroachment of
foundations onto Network Rail land and boundary treatments.

Any construction works on site and any future maintenance works must be
conducted solely within the applicant’s land ownership.

Any scaffolding which is to be constructed within 10 metres of the Network Rail
/ railway boundary must be erected in such a manner that at no time will any



(5

(6)

(7)

Page 35

poles over-sail the railway and protective netting around such scaffolding must
be installed. The applicant / applicant’s contractor must consider if they can
undertake the works and associated scaffolding / access for working at height
within the footprint of their land ownership boundary. The applicant is reminded
that when pole(s) are erected for construction or maintenance works, must have
at least a 3m failsafe zone between the maximum height of the pole(s) and the
railway boundary.

If vibro-compaction machinery / piling machinery or piling and ground treatment

works are to be undertaken as part of the development, details of the use of

such machinery and a method statement must be submitted to the Network Rail

Asset Protection Engineer for agreement.

. All works shall only be carried out in accordance with the method
statement and the works will be reviewed by Network Rail. The Network
Rail Asset Protection Engineer will need to review such works in order
to determine the type of soil (e.g. sand, rock) that the works are being
carried out upon and also to determine the level of vibration that will
occur as a result of the piling.

. The impact upon the railway is dependent upon the distance from the

railway boundary of the piling equipment, the type of soil the
development is being constructed upon and the level of vibration. Each
proposal is therefore different and thence the need for Network Rail to
review the piling details / method statement.
Maximum allowable levels of vibration - CFA piling is preferred as this
tends to give rise to less vibration. Excessive vibration caused by piling
can damage railway structures and cause movement to the railway track
as a result of the consolidation of track ballast. The developer must
demonstrate that the vibration does not exceed a peak patrticle velocity
of 5mm/s at any structure or with respect to the rail track.

The demolition works on site must be carried out so that they do not endanger
the safe operation of the railway, or the stability of the adjoining Network Rail
structures and land. The demolition of the existing building(s), due to its close
proximity to the Network Rail boundary, must be carried out in accordance with
an agreed method statement. Review of the method statement will be
undertaken by the Network Rail Asset Protection Engineer before the
development and any demolition works on site can commence. Network Rail
would like to add that the applicant is strongly recommended to employ
companies to demolish buildings / structures belonging to the National
Federation of Demolition Contractors. This will ensure that all demolition works
are carried out to professional standards and the company itself will also include
liability insurance as part of its service and that demolition works on site do not
impact the safety and performance of the railway.

The applicant must ensure that the proposal drainage does not increase
Network Rail’s liability, or cause flooding pollution or soil slippage, vegetation



Page 36

or boundary issues on railway land. Therefore, the proposal drainage on site
will ensure that:

. All surface waters and foul waters drain away from the direction of the
railway boundary.

. Any soakaways for the proposal must be placed at least 30m from the
railway boundary.

. Any drainage proposals for less than 30m from the railway boundary

must ensure that surface and foul waters are carried from site in closed
sealed pipe systems.

. Suitable drainage or other works must be provided and maintained by
the developer to prevent surface water flows or run-off onto Network
Rail’s property.

. Proper provision must be made to accept and continue drainage
discharging from Network Rail’s property.

. Drainage works must not impact upon culverts on developers land
including culverts/brooks etc that drain under the railway.

. The developer must ensure that there is no surface or sub-surface flow
of water towards the operational railway.

. Rainwater goods must not discharge in the direction of the railway or

onto or over the railway boundary.

(8)  As the proposal includes works which may impact the existing operational
railway and in order to facilitate the above, a BAPA (Basic Asset Protection
Agreement) will need to be agreed between the developer and Network Rail.
The developer will be liable for all costs incurred by Network Rail in facilitating
this proposal, including any railway site safety costs, possession costs, asset
protection costs / presence, site visits, review and agreement of proposal
documents and any buried services searches. The BAPA will be in addition to
any planning consent.

The applicant / developer should liaise directly with Asset Protection to set up
the BAPA (form attached). AssetProtectionLNWNorth@networkrail.co.uk”

The issues raised are with regard to the protection of private land interests which the
LPA has no duty to uphold through planning conditions. The information has been
passed to the applicant and will be added to any subsequent decision notice as an
informative.

Conclusions

The application seeks permission for proposed development at an existing waste site
including demolition of existing buildings (partial enclosure, picking line and external
storage bays) and the construction of a replacement enclosure area totalling
2,800sgm; 2,600sgm portal frame building with an air management system — filtering
through Granulated Activated Carbon (GAC) and discharge of odours through a 20m
stack; two external storage bays; weighbridge; substation; boundary to north of site;
and water tanks. The new portal frame building has been specifically designed to



Page 37

receive and treat malodorous commercial and municipal wastes streams, includes an
air tight structure and an air management system which will create a negative air
system and discharge to a stack.

Core Strategy Policy CS2, WLP Policy WMO0 and NPPF paragraphs 11 and 38 set out
the presumption in favour of sustainable development whereby applications that are
consistent with national and up-to-date local policy should be approved without delay.

The Council’s retained adviser has confirmed that the proposals are compliant with
the Joint Waste Local Plan and Core Strategy policy CS24 and the applicant has
provided information in relation to energy efficiency and transportation which are
consistent with the sustainability objectives of CS19.

The proposals are considered appropriate to the character of the existing site and will
result in significant environmental improvement when compared with the existing
operations. Proposed improvements to boundaries to the north and south of the site
will assist this further. The proposals are accord with site designation UDP Policies
E2, E3 and BE3.

The Local Highway Authority, Lead Local Flood Authority, Environmental Health
Officers and Environment Agency have confirmed that they raise no objections.

The proposal will result in considerable improvements to the existing waste site,
emanating mainly from internalising the vast majority of the waste processing in new
and modernised buildings and processes with additional environmental improvements
resulting from improved boundary treatments, containment of malodorous wastes and
better site operations. The applicant has demonstrated compliance with the Council’s
development plan and NPPF and members are requested to support the
recommendation of approval.

RECOMMENDATION

That the application is approved subject to conditions relating to the following:

1. Standard 3 year timescale for commencement of development

2. Specifying approved and amended plans

3. Grampian style condition relating to off-site highway works to facilitate parking
provision and curb re-alignment (TP12)

4. Condition requiring a construction phasing plan — with works to be enabled to
be carried out in any order (BE1)

5. Condition requiring submission and agreement of a Construction
Environmental Management Plan as outlined in the submitted ES (BE1 and
MW1)

6. Materials condition(s), requiring submission and agreement of building external

finishing materials (BE2)
7. Condition requiring landscaping scheme (BE1, BE3'and MW1).



10.

11.
12.

13.
14.

15.

16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.

23.

24.

Page 38

Condition requiring boundary treatments for north and south of the site (BE22)
Condition requiring treatment of the ground level enclosure to stack; fan; and
carbon absorber; to the south of building TFS4 as shown on drawing
183131/WTS/OI/004 A (BE2)

Condition requiring vehicle access, parking, servicing etc to be constructed
prior to occupation of properties/ commencement of use. (BE1)

Condition requiring submission and agreement of cycle parking details (TP6)
Condition restricting waste throughput to 450,000 tonnes per annum (BE1 and
MW1)

Condition restricting surface water run-off onto the adopted highway (TP17)

A condition requiring a site investigation scheme, remediation and verification
plan (PR14)

No piling or other foundation design using penetrative methods unless
demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater
(PR14)

Condition(s) restricting external storage locations, height, processing (BE1,
PR16 and MW1)

Condition relating to/ requiring submission and agreement of a sustainable
drainage scheme (BE1 and PR5)

Submission and agreement of Site Waste Management Plan (WM8)
Submission of a Bird Hazard Management Plan (MW1)

Submission and agreement of a lighting scheme (BE1)

Submission and agreement of site and finished floor levels (BE1)

There shall be no external storage other than that as approved on drawing
183131/WTS/PL/004 A

The materials stored in the external storage bays and area as shown on
drawing 183131/WTS/PL/004 A shall be stacked no higher than 4m (BE1 and
MW1)

No materials, waste or otherwise shall be burnt on site (BE1 and MW1)

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

As required by:

The National Planning Policy Framework;

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
(Amendment No.2) Order 2012; and

This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked proactively with
the applicant to secure developments that improve the economic, social and
environmental conditions of Halton.



Page 39

APPLICATION NO:

19/00080/FUL

LOCATION: Land at Edison Road, Astmoor Industrial
Estate, Runcorn, Cheshire, WA7 1PT.

PROPOSAL.: Proposed erection of storage warehouse
(Use Class B8) adjacent to existing unit.

WARD: Halton Castle

PARISH: None

AGENT(S) / APPLICANT(S): Mr Simon Hairsnape, Socio Building

Surveying Consultancy, Suite F,
Rainford Hall, Crank Road, Crank St
Helens, WA11 7RP.

Mr Matthew Dyal, Thompson and
Capper Ltd, 1-12 Hardwick Road,
Astmoor Industrial Estate, Astmoor,
Runcorn, WA7 1PT

DEVELOPMENT PLAN:
Halton Unitary Development Plan (2005)
Halton Core Strategy (2013)

Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste
Local Plan (2013)

ALLOCATIONS:

Primarily Employment Area

DEPARTURE No.

REPRESENTATIONS: No representations have been received
from the publicity given to the
application.

KEY ISSUES: Location within a Primarily Employment
Area, Parking and Servicing and
External Appearance/Design.

RECOMMENDATION: Grant planning permission subject to

conditions.

SITE MAP




Page 40

1. APPLICATION SITE

1.1The Site

The site subject of the application is vacant parcel of land located at the junction
of Edison Road and Astmoor Road on the Astmoor Industrial Estate in Runcorn.

Located to the north of the site is Astmoor Road which is the main vehicular
route through the Astmoor Industrial Estate.

Located to the south of the site is the Busway with units located on Hardwick
Road located beyond this.

Located to the west of the site is a unit located at the junction of Astmoor Road
and Hardwick Road. Vehicular access to this unit is gained from Hardwick
Road.



Page 41

Located to the east of the site on the opposite side of Edison Road is a site
which is used for car parking by an adjacent business.

2. THE APPLICATION

2.1The Proposal

This application seeks permission for the erection of a storage warehouse (Use
Class B8) adjacent to the existing unit.

2.2 Documentation

The application is accompanied by Phase | and Il Geo-Environmental Site
Assessments along with the planning drawings.

3. POLICY CONTEXT

Members are reminded that planning law requires for planning permission to
be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

3.1 Halton Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (2005)

The site is designated as Primarily Employment Area in the UDP and Policy E3
is applicable.

The following policies within the adopted Unitary Development Plan are
considered to be of particular relevance;

BE1 General Requirements for Development;

BE2 Quality of Design;

BE22 Boundary Walls and Fences;

GE21 Species Protection;

PR14 Contaminated Land;

PR16 Development and Flood Risk;

TP6 Cycle Provision as Part of New Development;

TP7 Pedestrian Provision as Part of New Development;
TP12 Car Parking;

E3 Primarily Employment Areas.

3.2Halton Core Strateqgy (2013)

The following policies, contained within the Core Strategy are of particular
relevance:

e (CS1 Halton’s Spatial Strategy;
e (CS2 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development;



Page 42

CS4 Employment Land Supply and Locational Priorities;
CS18 High Quality Design;

CS19 Sustainable Development and Climate Change;
CS23 Managing Pollution and Risk.

3.3 Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan (2013)

The following policies, contained within the Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste
Local Plan are of relevance:

¢ \WMS8 Waste Prevention and Resource Management;
e WM9 Sustainable Waste Management Design and Layout of New
Development.

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The majority of material considerations are identified in the analysis section of
this report but because of the importance of national policy, this section looks
at the National Planning Policy Framework

3.4 National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in February
2019 to set out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these
should be applied.

Achieving Sustainable Development

Paragraph 7 of the NPPF states that the purpose of the planning system is to
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. At a very high level,
the objective of sustainable development can be summarised as meeting the
needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to
meet their own needs.

Paragraph 8 states that achieving sustainable development means that the
planning system has three overarching objectives, which are interdependent
and need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways (so that opportunities can
be taken to secure net gains across each of the different objectives):

a) an economic objective — to help build a strong, responsive and competitive
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the
right places and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved
productivity; and by identifying and coordinating the provision of infrastructure;

b) a social objective — to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by
ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet
the needs of present and future generations; and by fostering a well-designed
and safe built environment, with accessible services and open spaces that
reflect current and future needs and support communities’ health, social and
cultural well-being; and



Page 43

¢) an environmental objective — to contribute to protecting and enhancing our
natural, built and historic environment; including making effective use of land,
helping to improve biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising
waste and pollution, and mitigating and adapting to climate change, including
moving to a low carbon economy.

Paragraph 9 states that these objectives should be delivered through the
preparation and implementation of plans and the application of the policies in
this Framework; they are not criteria against which every decision can or should
be judged. Planning policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding
development towards sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take local
circumstances into account, to reflect the character, needs and opportunities of
each area.

Paragraph 10 states so that sustainable development is pursued in a positive
way, at the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable
development. As set out in paragraph 11 below:

The Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Paragraph 11 states that for decision-taking this means:

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date
development plan without delay; or

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which
are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting
permission unless:

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework
taken as a whole.

Decision-making

Paragraph 38 states that local planning authorities should approach decisions
on proposed development in a positive and creative way. They should use the
full range of planning tools available, including brownfield registers and
permission in principle, and work proactively with applicants to secure
developments that will improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area. Decision-makers at every level should seek to approve
applications for sustainable development where possible.

Determining Applications

Paragraph 47 states that planning law requires for planning permission to be
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. Decisions on application should be made as



Page 44

quickly as possible and within statutory timescale unless a longer period has
been agreed by the applicant in writing.

3.50ther Considerations

4,

The application has been considered having regard to Article 1 of the First
Protocol of the Human Rights Act 1998, which sets out a persons rights to the
peaceful enjoyment of property and Article 8 of the Convention of the same Act
which sets out his/her rights in respect for private and family life and for the
home. Officers consider that the proposed development would not be contrary
to the provisions of the above Articles in respect of the human rights of
surrounding residents/occupiers.

CONSULTATIONS

4 1 Highways and Transportation Development Control Response

‘PARKING AND HIGHWAY SAFETY

After reviewing this application | would agree that the parking arrangement
appears to be satisfactory for a development of this size and nature

There is clear evidence of the ability for the larger vehicles to enter and exit in
a forward gear though there is some confusion over parking being located
within the area designated for turning as this parking appears that it could be
accommodated elsewhere.

The access to the unit appears to be blocked by the provision of disabled
parking bays, can we have a clearer indication of how this access works and if
indeed this is the main access or if HGV'’s enter by the other side of the unit. If
this is the case we would require tracking details for this area.

Vegetation clearance would be necessary in order to create the necessary
visibility splay, once vegetation is cleared there appears to be no visibility
issues. Visibility splay of 42m from a set back of 2.4 metres would be necessary.
We would like to see the inclusion of 2 EV charging points as part of the
development.

There is no mention of cycle parking. We would require a provision of secure,
covered and secure cycle parking as part of the application. Astmoor is subject
to a new cycle infrastructure investment and works are underway, we are keen
that provision within business supports the use of the new and improved routes.

DRAINAGE

The application proposes that surface water to be discharged into the main
sewer. This site comprises of a new floor space of in excess of 1000sqm and
as such the proposal for drainage would not be acceptable. It will be necessary
for the applicant to seek an agreement from the Lead Local Flood Authority for
discharge of surface water.



Page 45

CONDITIONS

e Agreement to be reached between the applicant and LLFS on drainage for the
site

e Details of the access points into and out from the unit

e Cycle parking provision to be included.”

4 .2 Contaminated Land Officer Response

“Further to your consultation | have considered the contaminated land
implications and would make the following comments;
The application is supported by the following documents;

e Phase | geo-environmental site assessment, ref 10-710-r1, E3P Ltd, July 2015.
e Phase Il geo-environmental site assessment, ref 10-710-r2, E3P Ltd, October
2015.

The reports present the findings of a desk study and preliminary risk
assessment and a follow up site investigation and detailed risk assessment.
The site was open land up until the western portion was included within the
curtilage of an adjoining alum works, specifically the land appears to have been
used for the storage of process wastes. The plot was then part of the
development of the current day Astmoor Industrial Estate although the site has
not been subject to redevelopment.

The site investigation was targeted at characterising the shallow sub-surface
with respect to soil and ground water contamination, ground gases and geo-
technical design issues. The investigation and subsequent assessment
identified elevated concentrations of arsenic and widespread occurrence of
asbestos within the soils. The ground gas monitoring recorded elevated
concentrations of carbon dioxide but minimal gas flow.

The report makes a number of recommendations for further work / mitigation
measures that include a Materials Management Plan and a Remediation and
Enabling Works Strategy. Of particular focus for the MMP is the need to
effectively manage the asbestos present in soils. As part of that there is a need
to further quantify the extent and significance of the asbestos impact, i.e.
additional sampling with laboratory quantification of the asbestos concentration.
The ground gas assessment has determined that the development should be
constructed with gas protection measures accordant with CS2 as per guidance
contained in CIRIA published document C665. However, this is based on
upgrading the level of protection due to carbon dioxide concentrations in excess
of 5%, which is something the guidance stipulates may be considered but is not
necessarily compulsory. Given the nature of the source, lack of gas flow and
the development proposed, | think that some consideration could be given to
re-assessing the gas risk, i.e. removing the need for gas protection measures.

| have no objection to the scheme in principle, but recommend that if approved
there are conditions attached requiring the submission of a remedial strategy,
which includes further assessment of the asbestos in soil and an asbestos



Page 46

management plan, a scheme of gas protection measures (or a revised gas risk
assessment indicating no measures required) and a verification report.”

4 3Lead Local Flood Authority

No observations received at the time of writing this report.

4 .4 United Utilities

They have requested that foul and surface water shall be drained on separate
systems and that a surface water drainage scheme be secured by condition.
Their other observations should be attached as an informative on the decision
notice.

4 5Cheshire Police

“My main concern with this development is that it is easily accessible due to the
road network. | would recommend the following:-

e  Minimum 2.1 metre Weld mesh security fence

e fFencing needs to be reinforced with posts on outside to reduce opportunity of
fence being attacked and someone driving through the gap

e The Unit should be fitted with an alarm and CCTV. | would strongly recommend
that all hardware complies with the guidance set out by Secured by Design
which is included in the attached document.”

5. REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 The application was advertised by a press advert in the Widnes & Runcorn
Weekly News on 07/03/2019, a site notice posted on Edison Road on
01/03/2019 and 14 neighbour notification letters sent on 28/02/2019.

5.2No representations have been received from the publicity given to the
application.

6. ASSESSMENT

6.1 Suitability of the proposed use

The site is located in a Primarily Employment Area and this proposal seeks
permission to erect a storage warehouse. The proposed use falls within Use
Class B8 of the Use Classes Order which includes Storage and Distribution.
Policy E3 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan states that development
falling within Use Class B8 will be permitted in a Primarily Employment Area.
The principle of erecting a storage warehouse on the site subject of the
application is considered to be acceptable.

It should be noted that this proposal would bring back into use a site which has
been vacant for many years as supported by the Brownfield Focus in Policy
CS1 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.



Page 47

6.2Highway Implications

The Highway Officer has commented that once the vegetation is cleared at the
proposed site entrance point, no visibility issues would exist and it therefore
represents an appropriate access point to the site from Edison Road. The
clearance of the vegetation and the maintenance of an appropriate visibility
splay should be secured by condition.

In respect of parking and servicing, the Highway Officer considers the parking
arrangement to be satisfactory for a development of this size and nature and
there is clear evidence of the ability for the larger vehicles to enter and exit in a
forward gear from Edison Road which shows the versatility of the building
should it be operated as a standalone unit in the future rather than in
conjunction with the adjacent unit as currently shown. The implementation of
the parking and servicing proposed should be secured by condition.

The proposed site plan shows 4no. cycle parking spaces. Itis not clear whether
this is secure and covered provision. The applicant is to be given the
opportunity to provide a detailed scheme up front to accompany the application,
however it would be possible to secure the submission of a detailed cycle
parking scheme and its subsequent implementation by condition.

In relation to pedestrian provision within the development, the applicant has
sought to separate the large vehicles accessing the site from the remainder of
the parking provision which would allow satisfactory pedestrian provision within
the site. Itis also noted that the site is adjacent to the Busway giving access to
services which serve the Runcorn area.

The Highway Officer would like to see the inclusion of 2 Electric Vehicle
charging points as part of the proposed development. This request is to be put
to the applicant and it would be possible to secure the implementation of a
suitable scheme by condition.

In conclusion, the proposal is acceptable from a highway perspective in
compliance with Policies BE1, TP6, TP7 and TP12 of the Halton Unitary
Development Plan.

6.3 External Appearance

The elevations show that the building proposed would be of an appropriate
appearance with some variety in materials to add interest to the overall external
appearance. The submission of precise external facing materials and their
subsequent implementation should be secured by condition.

It is noted that a portakabin office / toilet is shown on the proposed site plan,
however no detail has been provided on this. It is considered that it is
reasonable to attach a condition which secure the submission of a suitable
scheme for such provision.



Page 48

This would ensure compliance with Policies BE 1 & BE 2 of the Halton Unitary
Development Plan and Policy CS18 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan

6.4 Landscaping, Trees, Ecology and Fencing

There are no Tree Preservation Orders in force at this site and the site does not
fall within a designated Conservation Area.

The verge containing vegetation adjacent to Edison Road and Astmoor Road
is in need of some management and the suggested condition securing the
implementation of the visibility splay on Edison Road would ensure that this
happens.

There is little scope for soft landscaping with the proposed layout and no details
on boundary treatments have been provided. It is considered that a managed
verge of vegetation would help soften the appearance of the proposed
development. No boundary treatments details have been shown on the site plan
which accompanies the application. Itis considered that the continuation of the
fencing from the adjacent unit would be satisfactory design solution and would
be in line with the observations made by Cheshire Police. A condition securing
the submission of a detailed boundary treatment scheme, subsequent
implementation and maintenance thereafter is suggested.

In order to protect breeding birds during the removal of vegetation necessary
to implement the proposed development, it is considered reasonable to attach
a condition which ensures that these works are undertaken outside of breeding
bird season or have been checked by an Ecologist if works need to be
undertaken during that timeframe.

The attachment of the suggested conditions would ensure a satisfactory
landscaping proposal in compliance with Policies BE 1 and GE 21 of the Halton
Unitary Development Plan.

6.5Site Levels

Based on the site’s topography, it is considered that appropriate relationships
can be achieved in terms of appearance and relationships to existing roads. A
topographical survey has been provided as part of the application submission,
however a plan detailing proposed site levels has not been provided. Due to
the elevated nature of the site, it is noted that there would be a sloped servicing
yard on the proposed site plan, however further details are required. It is
considered that the submission of proposed site levels for approval and their
subsequent implementation can be secured by condition.

This would ensure compliance with Policy BE 1 of the Halton Unitary
Development Plan.



Page 49

6.6 Ground Contamination

The application is accompanied by Phase | and Il Geo-Environmental Site
Assessments

This has been reviewed by the Contaminated Land Officer and no objection
has been raised subject to the attachment of a condition which secures the
submission of a remediation strategy and appropriate validation to ensure that
any ground contamination is dealt with appropriately.

The attachment of the condition above will ensure compliance with Policy PR14
of the Halton Unitary Development Plan.

6.7 Flood Risk and Drainage

The application site is located in Flood Zone 1 and is at low risk from flooding
and has a site area of less than 1ha which does not necessitate the requirement
for a Flood Risk Assessment.

There is a requirement for a detailed drainage strategy for the site to be
submitted.

The drainage strategy for the development should/shall demonstrate use of the
drainage hierarchy, as described in Part H of the Building Regulations/ NPPF,
(This is the same as the standard condition requested by United Utilities).The
requirement for the submission of an appropriate drainage strategy and its
subsequent implementation to satisfy both the Lead Local Flood Authority and
United Utilities can be secured by condition.

This would ensure compliance with Policy PR16 of the Halton Unitary
Development Plan and Policy CS23 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.

6.8 Sustainable Development and Climate Change

Policy CS19 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan outlines some principles
which will be used to guide future development.

NPPF is supportive of the enhancement of opportunities for sustainable
development and it is considered that any future developments should be
located and designed where practical to incorporate facilities for charging
plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles.

The incorporation of facilities for charging plug-in and other ultra-low emission
vehicles could be realistically achieved for this development and a request has
been sent to the applicant regarding the introduction of 2no. electric vehicle
charging points within this scheme.

Based on the above, the proposal is considered compliant with Policy CS19 of
the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.



Page 50

6.9 Waste Prevention/Management

Policies WM8 and WM9 of the Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan
are applicable to this application. In terms of waste prevention, a construction
management plan will deal with issues of this nature and based on the
development cost, the developer would be required to produce a Site Waste
Management Plan. The submission of a Waste Audit should be secured by
condition.

In terms of on-going waste management, there is sufficient space on site to
deal with this.

The proposal is considered to be compliant with policies WM8 and WM9 of the
Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan.

7. CONCLUSIONS

In conclusion, the proposal would bring back into use a site within the Primarily
Employment Area which has been vacant for many years into a storage and
distribution use which is one of the accepted uses in this location.

An appropriate access point to site from Edison Road would be achieved as
well as linkages from the adjacent site which is in the applicant’s ownership /
control. The layout demonstrates sufficient space for movement within the site
as well as an appropriate level of car parking.

The proposal is considered to be of an appropriate design and the elevations
indicate a mix of materials to add interest and result in a well-designed
development.

The application is recommended for approval subject to conditions.

8. RECOMMENDATION

Grant planning permission subject to conditions.

9. CONDITIONS

Time Limit — Full Permission.

Approved Plans.

Proposed Site Levels (Policy BE1)

External Facing Materials (Policies BE1 and BE2)
Portakabin Office / Toilet Scheme (Policy BE1)

Boundary Treatments Scheme (Policy BE1)

Breeding Birds Protection — (Policy GE21)

Hours of Construction — (Policy BE1)

9. Visibility Splays — (Policy BE1)

10. Construction Management Plan (Highways) — (Policy BE1)
11.Provision & Retention of Parking and Servicing — (Policy BE1)

N>R WD =



Page 51

12.Cycle Parking Scheme — (Policy BE1)

13. Ground Contamination (Remediation and Validation) - (Policy PR14)
14.Drainage Strategy — (Policy PR16)

15.Foul and Surface Water on a separate system — (Policy PR16)

16. Waste Audit

Informatives

1. Highway Informative
2. United Utilities Informative
3. Cheshire Police Informative

10.SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

As required by:

e The National Planning Policy Framework (2018);

e The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015; and

e The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Amendment)
(England) Regulations 2015.

This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked proactively
with the applicant to secure developments that improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of Halton.



Page 52

APPLICATION NO: 19/00190/P3JPA

LOCATION: Axis House, Tudor Road, Manor Park,
Runcorn WA7 1BD

PROPOSAL.: Proposed change of use from office
building to 26 no. residential units.

WARD: Daresbury

PARISH: Sandymoor

AGENT(S) / APPLICANT(S): North West Portfolio (No.2) Ltd

SIHE AT TS

N et

f{ixi L Uﬁ)ﬁ%ﬂa& </ \ \

s\

s

Members will recall that the Committee has considered similar prior approval
applications for office to residential for other sites in Halton. This application proposes
a change of use from office to 26 no. residential units.

This application proposes the conversion of the building into a 26 units, 16 no. 1
bedrooms; 9 no. 2 bedroom; and 1 no. studio. As part of the scheme there are 26 cycle
parking spaces proposed and the use of the existing car parking area.

This application is NOT a full planning application. A change of use from Class B1(a)
offices to Class C3 (dwellinghouses) is permitted development under Part 3, Class O
of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order
2015 (as Amended).

There are a number of instances set out below where this change of use is not
permitted development.



Page 53

Development is not permitted by Class O where -

e the building is on article 2(5) land; THIS IS LAND WHICH IS EXCLUDED
FROM PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS ALLOWING CHANGE OF USE
OF A PROPERTY FROM CLASS B1(A) OFFICE USE TO CLASS C3
RESIDENTIAL. DOES NOT APPLY

e the building was not used for a use falling within Class B1(a) (offices) of the
Schedule to the Use Classes Order immediately before 30th May 2013 or, if the
building was not in use immediately before that date, when it was last in use;
DOES NOT APPLY

e the site is or forms part of a safety hazard area; THIS LAND IS NOT WITHIN
THE CONSULTATION ZONE OF A MAJOR HAZARD SITE OR PIPELINE.
DOES NOT APPLY

e the site is or forms part of a military explosives storage area; DOES NOT
APPLY

e the building is a listed building or a scheduled monument. DOES NOT APPLY

None of the above instances apply to this proposal.

This proposal is therefore permitted by Class O subject to the condition that before
beginning the development, the developer shall apply to the local planning authority
for a determination as to whether the prior approval of the authority will be required as
to -

(a) transport and highways impacts of the development;
(b) contamination risks on the site;
(c) flooding risks on the site;

(d) impacts of noise from commercial premises on the intended occupiers of the
development, and the provisions of paragraph W shall apply in relation to any such
application.

As the proposal is permitted development, the principle of development is accepted
and the only considerations relevant to the determination of this prior approval
application are the four considerations set out above.

Transport and highway impacts of the development

It is acknowledged that the proposed residential use would result in a material change
in the character of traffic in the vicinity of the site compared to that of an office use.
Traffic levels for the office use would have created significant movements in the
morning peak towards the site. The use as residential units would be expected to
create a lower flow and be spread over a greater period of time flowing away from the
site, therefore having a lesser impact on the highway network. These flows would be
reversed in the evening peak.



Page 54

The procedure for dealing with prior approval applications makes clear that the
National Planning Policy Framework is relevant to the subject matter of the prior
approval. In respect of transport impacts, it states that “development should only be
prevented or refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of
development are severe”.

The Highway Officer has commented that the existing with regards to parking provision
the proposed development mix of residential dwellings will exceed the maximum
standard as set out in the UDP. To ensure the development links to sustainable travel
options, walking, cycling and buses, the applicant has drawn up a scheme of proposed
off site highway works and links into/through the site to improve pedestrian routes
connecting to the wider network. This work should be implemented prior to the
occupation of dwellings permitted by the change of use.

The Highway Authority have been informed that due to the nature of the application
there is limited consideration that can be given to the current proposal and therefore
raise no objection to the application. We would however like to point out that the cycle
storage shown on the plans located at the rear of the site is not in a position that
provides either security or accessibility.

It is not considered that the proposal would have a severe transport and highway
impact. The proposal is therefore considered acceptable in this regard.

Contamination risks on the site

The Contaminated Land Officer has reviewed the proposal in respect of
contamination. The report details the findings of a preliminary risk assessment based
upon a desk study and site reconnaissance visit.

The report identifies the site as being undeveloped up until the construction of the
current on-site buildings, with the office use the only listed land use.

No significant potential contaminant sources have been identified and the risk posed
by land contamination to the proposed development is assessed as very low, given
the change to residential apartments with managed external landscaped areas. The
report concludes that no further assessment actions are required.

The Council is in agreement with the report findings and there are no objections on
the basis of ground contamination.

Flooding risks on the site

The site subject of the application is located within Flood Zone 1 and has a low
probability of river or sea flooding (less than 1 in 1000 annual probability). The site is
on the edge of a Critical Drainage area but not within it, so we would not be able to
require a reduction in surface water runoff as a ‘brownfield site’, which in any event
the site is unlikely to fall into as a change of use only, and not a site redevelopment.



Page 55

The proposal is therefore considered acceptable in this regard.

Impacts of noise from commercial premises on the intended occupiers of the
development

The application is for a residential development in an established
commercial/industrial area. In section 4 of the planning application reference is made
to a number of reports provided which includes noise. No such report was included
with the application. Given the existing use, and orientation of the adjacent units, the
current use does not impact the surrounding area to the same extent that some
commercial uses might. Therefore a refusal could not be supported on this basis as
the existing noise environment is not unreasonable for the proposed purpose. The
Council would however require some more information regarding the protection of the
internal noise environment in the proposed dwellings.

The applicant should provide a noise survey demonstrating that all dwellings can
achieve internal noise levels compliant with the requirements of BS4142, and
specifying any mitigation required to achieve these levels.

Conclusion

Based on the four considerations with this prior approval application, subject to the
submission of a noise survey, the proposal is acceptable and prior approval is not
required.

Recommendation

It is recommended that prior approval for the change of use from Class B1(a) offices
to Class C3 (dwellinghouses) is not required.

Condition:

Development under Class O is permitted subject to the condition that it must be
completed within a period of 3 years starting with the prior approval date.

DUE TO NEED TO ISSUE A DECISION WITHIN A 56 DAY PERIOD, DELEGATED
AUTHORITY FOR THE OPERATIONAL DIRECTOR — PLANNING, POLICY AND
TRANSPORTATION TO DETERMINE THIS PRIOR APPROVAL APPLICATION
FOLLOWING THE RECEIPT OF A NOISE SURVEY TO SATIFY THE
REQUIREMENTS OF PART 3, CLASS O OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY
PLANNING (GENERAL PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT) (ENGLAND) ORDER 2015
(AS AMENDED).



_.._]f,\.___ Development Control Committee
HALTON 13th May 2019

BOROUGH COUNCIL




_ho

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

g
iy .'"I
y
A
!
.".
i
/
/
s
/
y
'
— || oo

|
;ﬁ,
i,
Ul
/G abed

e
R [
——
—
e
= — — = /
== —
— = = Y, B
— — = /
— = s /
=— — — = ===
—— —— S = |

@ | / @
:@ — _::'_'_:-—-':\: P O ! '

© Crown copyright and database rights [2019] Ordnance Survey 100018552 0

Application Number: 18/00567/FULEIA Plan |A: Location Plan




_h_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

VIR § QERI U WIE svuul UuReRg A RS e seniElenue e s e e . o gEEn Ao oo e
re-fueling structure 1o be demolished, The structure ks 20 x 6 x 6 m at apex.

s e S ooy
showing green containers for operalive welfare and storage to be demolished,
The container is 10 x 3 x 2,5 m and typically couble-stacked,

Photo 4 (taken from the north of TFS1 lecking south) of picking ine, picking
bays and storage bays to be demolished. Picking line circa 70 x 10 x 4 m.

|

|

8G abed

Photo 7 (taken south west of TFS1 leoking nach)
showing the westem side of TFS1 and conveyer 1o,

Photo 5 {taken from the east of TFS1 looking west) of TFS1 Induding the undsr cover
storage bays and the picking line to be demolished.

Application Number: 18/00567/FULEIA Plan |IB : Existing Site Elevations Plan




o
HALTON

Development Control Committee

West Elevation Morth Elevation

R

g | s |

L] g - B

\_ l ‘IU.UUE L_L 70.00 m_ ;JU
«Q
(9]

East Elevation South Elevation (@)

3. g |

= 5 -

L . L1 4 i

Application Number: 18/00567/FULEIA Plan |1C : Proposed TFS| A Elevations




_h_

HALTON Development Control Committee

j South Elevation East Elevation
T 2 T
2 fit S
0w o 4] =
il =
4 . KRN [l
L0u 65.00 U
Q
«Q
MNorth Elevation West Elevation m
_ . (@))]
//—’\ O
T T
= 3
9 g < g
- | | 20,00 I 2 4 M| [l
- 65.00

Application Number: 18/00567/FULEIA Plan I1D : Proposed TFS4 Elevations




_h_

HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

North Elevation

Development Control Committee

East Elevation

South Elevation

West Elevation
I ———

T9 abed

5.00

Application Number: 18/00567/FULEIA

Plan |E : Proposed Sub Station Elevations




_h_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL
/(xternal yard ‘/ TFS2
\Proposed roposed reduced level

welighbridge loading bay A-AA ( 1 400@A3)

roposed scraen
(5.2 m high)

TFS4 TFS1A

29 abed

B-BB (1:500@A3)

2000@A3 @

Application Number: 18/00567/FULEIA Plan |F : Proposed Cross Section Plan




' —N\_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Run 2‘ W ok R\%ﬁled screen (5 2

Staff car parking
Proposed reduced level Ioadlng bay

Workshop

Staff Car Parking

Aggregate
Processing &
Storage Area

(TFS3)

Application Number: 18/00567/FULEIA Plan |G : Proposed Site Drainage Plan




o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Proposed Weighbridge, |

Office busiding

™

taff Bike Shed

Staff Car Parking

Aggregate
Processing &
Slorage Area

(TFS3)

b

Enclosure TFS1A

Development Control Committee

Application Number: 18/00567/FULEIA

Plan IH : Landscape Plan




' —N\_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

A AA

—-}» 3.00 e 3.00 oa
§— i
Existing | B 'BB
ground level |
; A -
1-1000@A3 (IO
mgq % “Profiled screen (5.2
Slaff car parking
Proposed reduced Ievel Ioadlng bay

G9 abed

Proposed Weighbridge §
[

Office bullding ol

s

..........

Application Number: 18/00567/FULEIA Plan |l : Weighbridge Plan




)
M\ __
HALT\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

) & ke

éo‘;;yﬁght Bluesky i

Application Number: 18/00567/FULEIA Plan 1] : Aerial Photograph




_ho

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

ROAD
L
| : ]
% Car Park
E EI'Sub Sta
| o
[] &
(9]
— o
~
\_\ o _{ l
1 —1 —1 —l 1 1] =
T T 31000

El Sub Sta A Tk

3 Tk
1

Tks %
3 4 5 6 7 8 |

@ El Sub Sta |—| j ’—
— | — — — | — |
h@ — ~ (g
HARDWICK ROAD Works
TN N N | 10m |
© Crown copyright and database rights [2019] Ordnance Survey 100018552 N 50 ft

Application Number: 19/00080/FUL Plan 2A : Location Plan




_h_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

ca — —— e S
7 -— ¥ =S \\\ /r///.___
- g N gt &
- \ {/
Jg =T =N (/]
-\_\.\ Cc . I T | : '_J" I
‘*.\\ ,,,,, <4 £ ’ | l

UNIT 12 ' \\“-.___ R P S RV e pysea - (1 ::}j' .:__.— [ , 9 e
THOMPSON AND CAPPER l EXISTING YARD ./ R P Lo s — 1/
‘ 7 “'J_;,._u Car Pasbung 8 ﬂ
E Tt R S e — QD
T ey ~ &
e r oonrs O ¢ \ Q
i } f S22 Z 2 | v\ ®
L o ) - @\ ") o))
- | N/ Io'e}

Busway Astmoor Industrial Estate

ﬂ_\.\\ ‘ T
1 1 A Y s T 1 o J T R ——
Gas Gov J ‘ —
N L

THOM}’SON AND CAPPER '

Application Number: 19/00080/FUL Plan 2B : Block Plan




_h_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

’ ’ — ————————  paaaE——
fIHl I SP———caes
LR

EXISTING UNIT YARD

LEFT HAND ELEVATION
EDISCN
ROAD

SLOPED YARD

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION OPTION 1

RIGHT HAND ELEVATION YARD EXISTING UNIT

EOBOR = SLOPED YARD

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION OPTION 1

69 abed

FRONT ELEVATION R —— REAR ELEVATION

Amendment: Canopy Removed

Application Number: 19/00080/FUL Plan 2C : Elevations Plan




o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

L BE T
LEL R L. ?'HI '%* JMJ Fﬂ
@z'_ .FL o v

© "

>opyright Bluesky

Application Number: 19/00080/FUL

e

L

- o

,I-O.v“’-* ﬂ-
e
vlﬁh

? '

Development Control Committee

Plan 2D : Aerial Photograph




)
—N\_
HALT\ON Development Control Committee

© Crown copyright and database rights [2019] Ordnance Survey 100018552

Application Number: 19/00190/P3JPA Plan 3A : Location Plan




o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Application Number: 19/00190/P3JPA

1BED APT

ENTRANCE » il

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

2 BEB APT
556qm / 5a2sqft

se2s

1728

1 s 1531 17128 7331 118
1BED APT 1 BED APT 2BED APT 1 BED APT 1 BED APT
£/ a3sqm/ 463sqn a4sqm | 47dsqh T0sam { 75350 4dsqm / a7asct 4zsqm / 452sqn
1 BED APT 1 BED AT 1 BED APT 1BED APT
E| 43sqm/d63sqh ddsom ( 74soh Adsgm | a74scht 42sqm | 452sqft
ALCONT

&/ a3sqm  463eqn

1BED APT

2BED APT 1BED APT 1BED APT
ddsom [ 474ggh TOsgm / 753scRt ddsgm ] 474scn 42s0m [ 452egN
i - |
il
I
2 1BED APT 1BED APT - h 1 BED APT 1BED APT
2| 43sqm/saasaft 44sqm | 4T4sqh ' 11— d4sqm | 4745t a2sqm / 452sqft
LI
i
-
2BED APT
E9agm [ 835sqit
P

Plan 3B : Proposed Ground, |5t & 2" Floor Plan

Development Control Committee

e
1:100

2 BED APT 2BED APT
B9sgm | 63%sqh S75qm ) Bl4sqft
g
2
¥ - P |
L A
1T e
il
RIILG g
V) [y
2 BED APT 2 BED APT
A | G0som / 64Seah G4sqm ! 600t
2
08 se3t

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

Z/) abed




)
M\ __
HALT\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

DOUBLE HEIGHT CYCLE STORE DETAILS

TYPICAL CYCLE STORE IMAGE

PROPOSED CAR PARKING SPACES
FOR APARTMENTS - 50No. }
(INCLUDING 4No.DISAELE SPACE) E

Application Number: 19/00190/P3JPA Plan 3C : Proposed Site Plan




_h_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

El

Sta

El Sub Sta

Footway to be provided
through planted area

v/ abed

One parking space 1o be
lost fo provide footway

@0

4

New footway to be created
through existing planted area /

> New footway to be provided on the south side of Tudor
Road for a distance of approximately 50 metres. Foolway
shown at 2m wide. Confirmation has been provided by
Halton Borough Council that the proposed 2m wide

Dropped crossing points footway is within the adopted highway.

with tactile paving

Application Number: 19/001 90/P3J PA Plan 3D : Proposed Footpath Improvements




_h_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

G/ abed

Application Number: 19/00190/P3JPA Plan 3E : Aerial Photograph




Page 76 Agenda ltem 4

REPORT TO: Development Control Committee

DATE: 13th May 2019

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director — Enterprise, Community and
Resources

SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Information

WARD(S): Boroughwide

The following applications have been withdrawn:

19/00005/FUL Proposed single storey side/rear extension together with first floor
rear extension and alterations at 55 High Street, Hale, L24 4AE.

19/00006/LBC Application for Listed Building Consent for proposed single storey
side / rear extension together with first floor rear extension and
alterations at 55 High Street, Hale, L24 4AE.

17/00513/FUL Proposed development of new build warehouse with ancillary
works at Hard Standing / Car Parking, Tudor Road, Runcorn,
Cheshire, WA7 1TA.

19/00049/ADV Application for proposed corporate advertising scheme for store
under consideration within application 19/00020/FUL, comprising
1 no. externally illuminated projector sign, 1 no. non-illuminated
fascia sign, 3 no. internally illuminated "Co-op" logos, 1 no. non-
illuminated wall panel and 3 no. non-illuminated banner frames at
proposed Co-op Store at land bounded by Pitts Heath Lane and
Otterburn Street, Sandymoor, Runcorn, Cheshire, WA7 1XU.

19/00071/PDE Proposed single storey rear extension projecting from the rear
wall by 8 metres the extension has a maximum height of 4 metres
and an eaves height of 2.9 metres at Lenox Farm, Ramsbrook
Lane, Hale, Liverpool, L24 5RP.

18/00585/COU Proposed change of use from B1 (Business) to C2 (Residential
Care Home) at Axis House, Tudor Road, Runcorn, Cheshire,
WA?7 1BD.



Page 77

The following Appeals have been received / are in progress:

Enforcement Notice - Without planning permission, the change of use of an incidental

18/00363/0OUT

18/00526/COU

18/00218/FUL

19/00010/COU

18/00117/FUL

residential annex to 256 Birchfield Rd Widnes to a separate
dwelling.

Application for outline planning permission with appearance,
landscaping and scale reserved for single two storey dwelling in
side garden area at 3 Nickleford Hall Drive, Widnes.

Proposed change of use from Pharmacy to Hot Food Takeaway
at Croft Pharmacy 4 Danescroft, Widnes, Cheshire, WA8 4NS.

Proposed erection of 1 no. dwelling attached to the side of the
existing property at 20 Maple Avenue, Runcorn, Cheshire, WA7
5LB.

Proposed change of use from former Sandwich Shop to Hot Food
Takeaway (use class A5) at 39 Bechers, Widnes, Cheshire, WAS8
4TE.

Proposed removal of the existing equine and WC building and
erection of 1 no. residential static park home at "Ponderosa" land
to South West of Junction between Newton Lane and Chester
Road, Daresbury, Cheshire.

The following Appeals have been determined:

None



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE
	18-00567-fuleia - WSR, Ditton Road, Widnes - PS
	19.00080.FUL - Land at Edison Road, Runcorn
	19-00190-P3JPA - Axis House, Tudor Road, Manor Park, Runcorn
	Cttee_May

	4 MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

